## **COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT**

## **BETWEEN**

## THE SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

## **AND**

# THE CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, LOCAL NO. 2669



COVERING THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2023 TO DECEMBER 31, 2027

## **Table of Contents**

Table of Conte	ents	2
Definitions		4
Preamble		6
Articles		
Article 1.	Term of Agreement	6
Article 2.	Scope	6
Article 3.	Recognition	7
Article 4.	Resolutions	8
Article 5.	Fair Employment Practices	8
Article 6.	Seniority	9
Article 7.	Appointments	. 10
Article 8.	Superior Duty	. 14
Article 9.	Hours of Work for Permanent and Temporary Employees	. 14
Article 10.	Hours of Work for Circulation Associates	. 16
Article 11.	Vacations	
Article 12.	Public, Personal, Religious, and Cultural Holidays	. 21
Article 13.	Sick Leave	
Article 14.	Circulation Associate Sick Time	. 23
Article 15.	Maternity, Adoption, and Parental Leave	. 23
Article 16.	Compassionate and Bereavement Leave	. 24
Article 17.	Victims of Interpersonal Violence Leave	. 25
Article 18.	Jury and Witness Duty	. 25
Article 19.	Employee Development	. 26
Article 20.	Leave Without Pay	. 27
Article 21.	Union Leave – Employer Paid	. 27
Article 22.	Union Leave – Unpaid	. 28
Article 23.	Self-Funded Leave	. 30
Article 24.	Technological Change	. 31
Article 2 <b>5</b> .	Occupational Health and Safety	
Article 26	Violence and Harassment	. 34
Article 27.	Grievance Procedure	. 35
Article 28.	Discipline	
Article 2 <b>9</b> .	Resignations and Terminations for Permanent and	.39
	Temporary Employees	
Article 30.	Layoff for Permanent and Temporary Employees	
Article 31.	Resignations and Terminations for Circulation Associates	
Article 32.	Layoffs for Circulation Associates	
Article 33.	Superannuation and Retirement	
Article 3 <b>4</b> .	Group Life Insurance	
Article 3 <b>5</b> .	Transportation	. 51
Article 36.	Dental and Medical/Vision Care Plan	
Article 37.	Wages	
Casual and	Circulation Associate Table of Application	. 80

Appendix B	82
Re: Extension Indigenous Hiring	
Re: Job Sharing Agreement	
Re: Job Evaluation (2002)	
Re: Job Evaluation (2007)	
Re: Joint Job Evaluation Plan - Terms of Reference (2003)	90
Re: Joint Job Evaluation Plan (2014)	97
Re: Pay Equity (2002)	98
Re: Working From Home (Telework)	
Re: Frances Morrison Central Library Safety and Security Measures	101
Re: Safety and Security Measures	103
Re: Occupational Health and Safety Commitment	105
Re: External Salary Review	107
Re: Circulation Associate Vacation Time	108
Re: Circulation Associate Paid Sick Leave	110
Re: Circulation Associate Personal, Religious or Cultural Holidays	112
Re: Averaging Hours of Work (Flex Time)	114
Re: Lieu Days for Full-time Employees	116
Signing Page	117
DIGITIFIC F age	/

#### **Definitions**

#### **Bumping**

Is a procedure by which a permanent employee with greater seniority who has been laid off may displace an employee with less seniority from a position unaffected by the layoff. The bumping employee must be qualified for the position.

#### Casual Employee

A casual employee is an employee who is not regularly scheduled to work. Subject to the provisions of Article 6.2 such an employee is under no obligation to work unless the employee agrees to do so in response to an incidental call or invitation made by SPL. The terms of this agreement apply to casual employees as stated and as specified in Appendix A.

#### **Circulation Associate**

An employee performing paging duties who is assigned a regular Schedule Assignment. The terms of this agreement apply to Circulation Associates as stated and as specified in Appendix A, the LOU for Circulation Associate Sick Leave, and Article 14.

#### **Duty to Accommodate**

The legal duty of the Employer, the Union and the employee to work together to modify the employee's duties or reassign the employee to another job where the employee will not suffer discrimination by reason of a disability or other protected grounds. The duty to accommodate is to the point of undue hardship.

#### **Employee**

Is as defined by the *Saskatchewan Employment Act*, is employed by SPL and is a member of CUPE Local 2669.

#### **Employer**

Is the Saskatoon Public Library Board.

#### Pay in Lieu of Notice

Is the dollar amount equivalent to the notice period required to be provided by Article **29**.2

#### Permanent Employee

Is an employee who has successfully completed a probationary period at SPL and holds a permanent, salaried position.

Circulation Associates, temporary and casual employees are not permanent employees.

#### Permanent Position

Is a salaried position with a defined number of guaranteed hours over a fourweek period and with no defined end date. A permanent position may be fulltime or part-time.

#### Protected Leave

Is a leave of absence provided for reasons protected by the Saskatchewan Human Rights Code or other legislation.

#### **Seniority**

The number assigned to an employee in fixed order in accordance with Article 6.1.

#### Term Position

Is a position of predetermined duration exceeding three (3) months and up to one (1) year. Such a position may be full-time or part-time and may be held by either a permanent or temporary employee.

#### Temporary Employee

Is an employee in a term position who does not hold a permanent position.

#### <u>Union</u>

Is CUPE Local 2669, the labour organization and certified bargaining agent for employees of the Saskatoon Public Library Board.

#### **Preamble**

## Agreement made on the 21st day of February, 2025

#### **BETWEEN:**

The Saskatoon Public Library (SPL) Board hereinafter referred to as the "Employer"
- and The Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE), Local No. 2669
hereinafter referred to as the "Union"

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide harmonious relationships, encourage efficiency and effectiveness in library operations,

And to recognize the mutual value of joint discussions and negotiations in all matters pertaining to working conditions and employment,

And to promote the morale, well-being and security of all employees in the bargaining unit of the Union.

The parties therefore agree to the following:

#### Articles

## Article 1. Term of Agreement

This agreement shall come into force and take effect on and from the first (1<sup>st</sup>) day of **July, 2023**, and shall continue in force until the **thirty-first (31<sup>st</sup>)** day of **December**, **2027**, and from year to year thereafter unless either party gives written notice to renegotiate the Agreement, such written notice to be given not less than sixty (60) days nor more than one hundred and twenty (120) days before the expiry date of this collective agreement.

## Article 2. Scope

CUPE 2669 is the certified bargaining agent for all employees employed by the Saskatoon Public Library Board, except:

Director of Libraries and CEO Director, Public Services Director, Collections and Service Infrastructure Director, Strategy and Communication Director, Finance and Administrative Services

Director, Human Resources

Director, Reconciliation

#### **Senior Manager, Borrower and Information Services**

Senior Manager, Central Library

Senior Manager, Collections

#### Senior Manager, Emerging Technologies

Senior Manager, Facilities

Senior Manager, Finance

#### Senior Manager, Inclusivity and Community Partnerships

Senior Manager, Information Technology Services

Senior Manager, Neighbourhood Services

Senior Manager, Planning and Assessment

Senior Manager, Programming and Creative Spaces

#### Senior Manager, Security

Manager, Branches

Manager, Community Giving

#### Manager, Security

Administrative Assistant

Assessment and Continuous Improvement Analyst

**Executive Assistant** 

Financial Analyst and Payroll Supervisor

**Human Resources Consultant** 

Human Resources Coordinator

#### **Human Resources ERP Functional Analyst**

#### **Human Resources Occupational Health and Safety Practitioner**

Pay and Benefits Coordinator

Payroll/Accounting Assistant

Senior Human Resources Consultant

Senior Marketing and Communications Specialist

Service Enhancement and Project Analyst

**Systems Engineer** 

**Building Superintendent** 

Maintenance Staff

## Article 3. Recognition

- 3.1 The Saskatoon Public Library Board recognizes CUPE Local No. 2669 as the sole Union representing the employees covered by this Agreement, and through which it will deal in matters related to working conditions and wages. No employee shall be required or be permitted to make a written or verbal agreement with Management that will conflict with the terms of this Collective Agreement.
- 3.2 Every employee who is now or hereafter becomes a member of the bargaining unit, shall maintain their membership in the Union as a condition of employment,

and every new employee whose employment commences hereafter, shall, within thirty (30) days after the commencement in their employment, apply for and maintain membership in the Union as a condition of their employment, provided that any employee in the appropriate bargaining unit who is not required to maintain their membership or apply for and maintain their membership in the Union, shall as a condition of their employment, tender to the Union the periodic dues uniformly required to be paid by the members of the Union.

3.3 The Employer shall deduct initiation fees, assessment and monthly dues from the earnings of each employee. Such funds deducted from an employee's earnings on behalf of the Union, shall be remitted to the person designated by the Union twice (2X) monthly.

The Union shall furnish the Employer with dues authorization cards. The Employer agrees to have all new employees sign the dues authorization cards within thirty (30) days of commencement of employment.

3.4 A representative of the Union will be given a private opportunity to speak to new employees as a group at new employee orientation sessions.

#### Article 4. Resolutions

All non-confidential reports of the Board, which affect the employees covered by this Agreement shall be forwarded to the Secretary of the Union.

## Article 5. Fair Employment Practices

#### 5.1 No Discrimination

The Employer and the Union will continue to abide by the duty to accommodate, which applies to the Employer, the Union and the employees.

The Employer and the Union will continue their present policy of no discrimination, with respect to any person in regard to employment, or any term or condition of employment because of age, race, or perceived race, creed, sex, sexual preference, nationality, ancestry, place of origin, disability, marital status, political affiliation or membership in the Union, religion, family status, colour, receipt of public assistance or gender identity.

#### 5.2 Intellectual Freedom

The Employer and the Union agree to be governed by the Intellectual Freedom statement of the Canadian Federation of Library Associations in their provision of library services to the community. Internally, matters of professional discussion

should be governed by the same principles. Employees have the right to express their views whether or not they differ from those of management or fellow employees provided they are not presented as the views of the Saskatoon Public Library.

## Article 6. Seniority

#### 6.1 Use of Seniority

Employees hired previous to midnight on December 31, 2007, shall hold their seniority as previously determined by accumulated hours worked; after December 31, 2007, this seniority shall be considered fixed by numerical ranking and in lieu of the date of hire.

For employees hired after midnight December 31, 2007, seniority shall be determined by the date the employee was last hired by the Employer. The order of seniority will be determined by the date and time of the offer of employment made by the Employer.

Provided Circulation Associates have completed their probationary period as set out in Article 7.3 they may exercise seniority when applying for any vacancies for which they have the qualifications.

Newly hired casuals shall work four hundred and thirty-five (435) hours or six (6) months, whichever is greater, to exercise seniority as outlined in this article.

Seniority cannot be exercised during a probationary period. During an assessment period, seniority rights may only be exercised when applying for a permanent position.

## 6.2 Cessation of Seniority

An employee's seniority shall cease if:

- a. The employee voluntarily leaves the employment of the Library;
- b. The employee is dismissed and such dismissal is not revised through the grievance procedure;
- c. The employee is absent without leave without reasonable cause;
- d. After having been provided Notice of Layoff as set out in Article **30**.2 a., the employee fails to meet any one of the requirements set out in Article **30**, or for a Circulation Associate, the provisions of Article **32**;

- e. The employee overstays vacation leave or an approved leave of absence without reasonable cause;
- f. The employee accepts a permanent out-of-scope position and remains in it for longer than sixty (60) days, as described in subsection 6.3 except where the employee is in the position as a workplace accommodation;
- g. The employee is a temporary employee in a term position whose term position has ended.

The seniority of casual employees shall cease and is deemed terminated if the casual has not worked a shift within six (6) months, except where the casual has been on an approved or protected leave.

#### 6.3 Appointment to an out-of-scope position

Except where the employee is in the position as a workplace accommodation, an employee who is appointed to an out-of-scope position, and who remains in the position for sixty (60) days or less, shall retain their seniority and shall have the right to return to their former position.

## 6.4 Seniority List

Annually on July 1, the Employer shall provide the employees and the Union with a seniority list which shall include all employees, Circulation Associates and casuals, and their ranking and date the employee was last hired by the Employer. The list shall be deemed to be accurate as of May 31.

Employees shall be allowed a period of six (6) weeks from the date of posting in which to bring forward any errors appearing on the list. Upon proof of error, the Employer shall revise the list.

## Article 7. Appointments

#### 7.1 Postings

Where permanent, term or Circulation Associate vacancies occur exceeding three (3) months' duration, notice thereof outlining the position, duties, pay grade and qualifications required shall be posted internally for seven (7) calendar days so that employees may apply.

The Union shall receive notification of all vacancies and of the successful applicant to any vacancy so posted.

#### 7.2 Selection Factors

- a. Seniority in accordance with Article 6.1 shall be the determining factor in selecting the successful applicant provided the applicant possesses the required qualifications for the position vacancy.
- For the purposes of this clause, "designated positions" will refer to those
  positions that have been negotiated by the Union and the Employer for
  applicants with First Nations, Métis, and Inuit heritage.

For appointment to designated positions, seniority in accordance with Article 6.1 shall be the determining factor in selecting the successful applicant among internal applicants with First Nations, Métis, and/or Inuit heritage provided the applicant possesses the required qualifications for the position vacancy.

#### 7.3 Probationary Period

Newly hired employees who are appointed as a Circulation Associate, or to a term or a permanent position are subject to a probationary period of four hundred and thirty-five (435) hours or six (6) months, whichever is greater.

A casual employee who is appointed as a Circulation Associate, or to a term or permanent position shall be considered a newly hired employee and is subject to the same probationary period outlined above.

An evaluation shall be conducted at the mid-point and at the end of the probationary period by the manager. A copy of the evaluation shall be provided to the employee and the Director of Libraries and CEO. The probationary period of a newly hired employee may be extended. The length of time by which the probationary period may be extended shall not exceed **two hundred and eighteen (218)** hours or three (3) months, whichever is greater.

The Employer shall provide a letter to the employee and the Union indicating the length of the extension, the reasons for the extension and the performance expectations to be achieved.

The probationary period may also be extended by the amount of time the employee does not work because of a paid or unpaid absence exceeding five (5) consecutive workdays occurring during the probationary period.

During the probationary period, the employee is responsible for establishing their suitability for continuing employment, failing which their employment will cease. As provided for by Article 6.1, seniority may not be exercised during a probationary period.

Casual employees who accept a term position shall revert to their former casual position and status upon completion of the term.

#### 7.4 Appointments to Casual Positions

Appointees to casual positions are not subject to a probationary period and will instead be provided with ongoing performance feedback.

#### 7.5 Assessment Period

Permanent and temporary employees and Circulation Associates who have passed a probationary period and who are appointed to another position, or to the same position in another location or work unit, are subject to an assessment period of two hundred and eighteen (218) hours or three (3) months, whichever is greater.

An evaluation shall be conducted at the mid-point and at the end of the assessment period by the manager. A copy of the evaluation shall be provide to the employee **or Circulation Associate** and the Director of Libraries and CEO.

The assessment period may be extended. The length of time by which the assessment period may be extended shall not exceed two hundred and eighteen (218) hours or three (3) months, whichever is greater. The Employer shall provide a letter to the employee **or Circulation Associate** and the Union indicating the length of the extension, the reasons for the extension and the performance expectations to be achieved.

The assessment period may also be extended by the amount of time the employee **or Circulation Associate** does not work because of a paid or unpaid absence exceeding five (5) consecutive workdays occurring during the assessment period.

During the assessment period, an employee **or Circulation Associate** who is not considered capable of fulfilling the duties of the new position, **or of the position in the new location or work unit,** may be reverted to their former permanent position or Schedule Assignment, without loss of seniority. Where the former permanent position or former Schedule Assignment no longer exists, Article **30** will apply for permanent employees, and Article **32** for Circulation Associates.

During the first three (3) weeks of an assessment period, an employee or Circulation Associate has the right to revert to their former permanent position, former location nor work unit, or former Schedule Assignment, for any reason without loss of seniority. During the remainder of an assessment period, an employee or Circulation Associate may request to be reverted to their former permanent positions, former location or work unit, or former Schedule Assignment, without loss of seniority.

Other employees **or Circulation Associates** who have been appointed to other positions as a consequence of the original appointment shall also be returned to their former permanent positions or Schedule Assignments. Where the former permanent position or former Schedule Assignment no longer exists, Article **30** will apply for permanent employees and Article **32** for Circulation Associates.

While in an assessment period, an employee **or Circulation Associate** may only exercise their seniority to apply for permanent positions, as outlined in Article 6.

#### 7.6 Probationary and Assessment Periods in Term Positions

An employee in a term position who has successfully completed either:

- a. The probationary period, if newly-hired; or
- b. The assessment period, if a permanent employee, shall be deemed to have completed an assessment period for that position if:
  - The position is posted as a permanent position during the employee's term or within thirty (30) calendar days of the end of the employee's term; and
  - ii. The employee is the successful applicant for that position.

#### 7.7 Term Position Beyond Twelve Months

Upon approval of the Union, an employee may be appointed to a term position which exceeds, or is extended beyond, twelve (12) months with the exception of term positions required as a result of Article 15 and Article 22 where Union approval is not required. The employee shall be informed in writing, with a copy to the Union, of the anticipated duration of the term position.

#### 7.8 Where No Employees with Permanent Status

If no employee with permanent status is appointed to a vacancy in accordance with Article 7 then newly hired employees or temporary employees may apply during their probationary period. Such employees shall have the same status as external candidates.

- 7.9 No employee shall be subject to transfer from one work unit to another or from one branch to another without prior consultation except in the case of emergency.
- 7.10 The foregoing shall in no way compel the Employer to fill any position which the Employer desires to discontinue.

7.11 The Union shall be informed in writing when a position is to be discontinued or transferred to another work unit or branch. The anticipated duration of a transferred position shall be given.

## Article 8. Superior Duty

When management requires an employee to replace and substantially perform the duties of a higher-paid employee for a period of three (3) consecutive days or more, the employee shall receive the minimum step of the higher-paid position or a rate of pay equivalent to one (1) step higher than their present rate of pay — whichever is greater — for the entire period.

When there is more than one (1) qualified employee, seniority will apply.

To ensure an equitable distribution of superior duty opportunities amongst qualified employees, a qualified employee who formally exercises their seniority and receives the superior duty appointment shall not be permitted to again exercise their seniority rights for the next superior duty pay opportunity for which the employee is qualified.

Superior duty pay opportunities shall be granted to employees within the work unit where the opportunity exists. If no qualified employee is present, consideration will be given to other qualified employees in the bargaining unit.

## Article 9. Hours of Work for Permanent and Temporary Employees

#### 9.1 a. The Normal Work Week

The normal work week is five (5) days, thirty-six and one quarter (36¼) hours or seven and a quarter (7¼) hours per day. It is understood that employees shall not require sixteen (16) hour rest periods between shifts however, this shall not occur more than two (2) evenings per week.

#### b. The Alternate Work Week

Notwithstanding the above, subject to the needs, and the agreement of affected individual employees, work schedules may be implemented whereby employees will be allowed to work six (6) days in one (1) week followed by four (4) days in the second week without two (2) consecutive days off and without overtime compensation.

Either party, upon giving sixty (60) days' written notice to the other party, may withdraw from this provision.

#### 9.2 Meal Breaks and Rest Periods

- a. Two (2) fifteen (15) minute paid rest periods per seven and one quarter (7¼) hour day are allowed for all employees. These paid rest periods are to occur approximately midway through each half of the shift.
- b. One fifteen (15) minute paid rest period will be allowed during a five
   (5) hour shift. In this case a thirty (30) minute unpaid meal break will not be required.

#### 9.3 Regular Days Off

Except in the case where an employee working an Alternate Work Week elects otherwise, all employees shall have at least two (2) consecutive days off scheduled in each seven (7) day period. Every reasonable effort shall be made to ensure that these days off are consistent on a week-to-week basis.

#### 9.4 Schedule Type

All full- and part-time employees shall be assigned to work one of the following Schedule Types: Daytime Schedule Type, Evening Schedule Type, or Mixed Schedule Type.

Scheduling will be done according to operational need. Every reasonable effort shall be made to ensure that scheduled hours fall on consistent days and evenings on a week-to-week basis.

Schedules shall be prepared within the restrictions set out in the employee's Schedule Type as follows:

#### a. Daytime Schedule Type

The Daytime Schedule Type shall consist of scheduled hours between 8 a.m. and 6:30 p.m.

#### b. Evening Schedule Type

The Evening Schedule Type shall consist of scheduled hours between 12 p.m. and 9:30 p.m.

#### c. Mixed Schedule Type

The Mixed Schedule Type shall consist of scheduled hours from both the Daytime and Evening Assignments.

#### 9.5 **Changing Schedule Type**

In the event that the Employer needs to change an employee's Schedule Type, written notification in advance of such change shall be given to the employee and the Union as follows:

- a. Where the employee has passed probation and worked less than five (5) years, four (4) weeks' notification;
- b. Where the employee's length of service exceeds five (5) years but is less than ten (10) years, six (6) weeks' notification; or
- c. Where the employee's length of service exceeds ten (10) years, eight (8) weeks' notification.

#### 9.6 Overtime

- a. Overtime is defined as additional time worked beyond seven and a quarter (7 1/4) hours in a day or beyond thirty-six and a quarter (36 1/4) hours in a week. Overtime does not refer to hours worked as part of the Alternate Work Week as described in 9.1 b.
- b. All overtime shall be on a voluntary basis;
- c. All overtime shall be approved by a manager in advance;
- d. Employees shall be paid at the rate of time and one half (1½X) overtime worked;
- e. The Employer and the Union agree that the employee may take time off in lieu of overtime pay.
- 9.7 Any changes in hours of Library opening will be made by the Saskatoon Public Library Board after consultation with the Union.
- 9.8 Opportunity for additional hours of work may be made available:
  - a. First to the available, qualified and trained part-time employees in the branch or work unit;
  - b. Second to any available, qualified, and trained casual employees.
- 9.9 Information Technology Services employees who are specifically designated to stand-by will receive one (1) hours' pay at their regular rate of pay for each eight (8) hour period or portion thereof. Should an Information Technology employee who is on stand-by be called and fails to respond or report, the stand-by premium will not be paid.

#### Article 10. **Circulation Associate Hours of Work**

#### 10.1

#### a. The Normal Work Week

The normal work week is five (5) days, thirty-six and one quarter (36 $\frac{1}{4}$ ) hours or seven and a quarter (7 $\frac{1}{4}$ ) hours per day. It is understood that employees shall not require sixteen (16) hour rest periods between shifts however, this shall not occur more than two (2) evenings per week.

#### b. The Alternate Work Week

Notwithstanding the above, subject to the needs, and the agreement of affected individual employees, work schedules may be implemented whereby employees will be allowed to work six (6) days in one (1) week followed by four (4) days in the second week without two (2) consecutive days off and without overtime compensation.

Either party, upon giving sixty (60) days' written notice to the other party, may withdraw from this provision.

#### **10.2** Schedule Assignments for Circulation Associates

a. Regular Permanent or Term Schedule Assignments for Circulation Associates.

When the Employer chooses to divide available work into schedule assignments, notice of available schedule assignments shall be posted pursuant to Article 7.1.

Each schedule assignment will clearly indicate:

- The location of the work:
- ii. The number of hours per week;
- iii. The days and times in which scheduled hours can fall.

Seniority in accordance with Article 6.1 shall be the determining factor in selecting the successful applicant.

- b. If the Employer wishes to change any of the following:
  - i. The location, or

- ii. Number of hours per week, or
- iii. The day(s) of work, or
- iv. The time(s) in which hours can be scheduled of a position occupied by an incumbent,

the Employer will give eight (8) weeks of written notice to all affected Circulation Associate(s) and to the Union.

Should the Circulation Associate be unable to accommodate this change, they will notify the Employer in writing within four (4) weeks of the original notice of the change, and Article 32 Layoff for Circulation Associates shall apply.

- c. Any Circulation Associate who has passed probation may express interest in an available schedule assignment(s) provided the schedule assignment does not conflict with their ability to work their current schedule assignment(s), and that the combined number of hours of schedule assignments do not exceed seven and a quarter (7.25) hours per day and/or thirty-six and a quarter (36.25) hours per week.
- d. A Circulation Associate may request to their manager, in writing, a reduction or change to their scheduled hours of work. Where operational needs allow, the reduction or change will be made.

#### 10.3 Overtime

- a. Overtime is defined as additional time worked beyond seven and a quarter (7 ¼) hours in a day or beyond thirty-six and a quarter (36 ¼) hours in a week.
- b. All overtime shall be on a voluntary basis;
- c. All overtime shall be approved by a manager in advance;
- d. Circulation Associates shall be paid at the rate of time and one half (1½X) for overtime worked.

#### **10.4** Additional Hours for Circulation Associates

The Employer may divide available work as it determines necessary and may offer the work as call-in hours, as a new term or permanent schedule assignment(s), or as other hours offered as additional to a permanent schedule assignment(s).

Circulation Associates are responsible for ensuring they do not accept additional hours or schedule assignment(s) that will cause their daily hours to exceed seven and a quarter (7.25) hours per day and/or thirty-six and a quarter (36.25) hours per week.

Circulation Associates may only accept additional schedule hours or call-in hours that do not conflict with their ability to work their current schedule assignment(s).

#### a. Master Circulation Associate Call-in List

When a Circulation Associate(s) has successfully completed their probation period, the Circulation Associate(s) may be added to the Master Call-in List for Circulation Associates. The Circulation Associate(s) must indicate the branches they wish to be added to for call-in, and the hours they are available to work for call-in hours. Any changes to the requested branches or available hours must be submitted, in writing by the Circulation Associate(s), to the Employer.

b. Hours Offered as Additional to an existing Schedule Assignment(s)

When the Employer chooses to offer available temporary or permanent work as additional schedule hours, rather than dividing the available hours into a schedule assignment, such available schedule hours shall be made available in the following order:

- i. To existing available Circulation Associates who have passed probation in the branch in order of seniority, and then
- ii. To Circulation Associates who are on the master call-in list in order of seniority, and then
- iii. To any existing and interested Circulation Associates.

#### c. Circulation Associate Call-In

Opportunity for additional Circulation Associate call-in hours of work shall be made in the following order:

- To the existing available Circulation Associates in the branch in order of seniority,
- ii. To those Circulation Associates who are on the master call-in list, in order of seniority, and then
- iii. To any employee as per Article 9.8.

Circulation Associates shall not take additional Call-in Hours that result in overtime hours. All overtime must be approved in advance by a manager as overtime.

## **10.5** Circulation Associates Trading Individual Shifts for a Specified Temporary Period

- a. The Circulation Associate requesting a trade will be responsible for finding a Circulation Associate within their branch interested in a trade of hours. The Circulation Associates must complete the appropriate forms and submit it to their manager. If unable to find someone interested in trading, the Circulation Associate is required to report to work for all hours of their schedule assignment, or may apply for leave.
- b. If a temporary trade is in effect and one of the two Circulation Associates resign, the remaining Circulation Associate is required to revert to their original schedule assignment and may attempt to find another trade or request leave.

#### **10.6** Circulation Associates Applying for Casual Postings

Circulation Associates may apply for Casual Employee postings as outlined in Article 7. Circulation Associates who are appointed as Casual Employees may retain their regular Circulation Associate schedule assignment provided the Circulation Associate ensures their casual hours do not conflict with their ability to work their regular schedule assignment hours and do not result in working more than seven and a quarter (7.25) in a day and/or thirty-six and a quarter (36.25) hours in a week.

#### Article 11. Vacations

11.1 Subject to clause 11.5, vacation leave is granted on the basis of seniority and efficient functioning of each branch. Employees may take their earned vacation leave upon completion of their probationary period.

#### 11.2 Vacation Entitlement

- a. Professional Librarians are entitled to four (4) weeks' vacation after one (1) year accumulated service. All other employees are entitled to three (3) weeks' vacation after one (1) year's accumulated service.
- b. All other staff are entitled to four (4) weeks' vacation after three (3) years accumulated service.
- c. All staff are entitled to five (5) weeks' vacation after fifteen (15) years accumulated service.
- d. All staff are entitled to six (6) weeks' vacation after twenty-four (24) years accumulated service.

- 11.3 If an employee should experience illness or injury of a serious nature during vacation leave or immediately prior to vacation leave, provided the illness or injury is documented by a physician, time off for these reasons will be charged against the employee's sick leave and not vacation leave.
- 11.4 After completion of two (2) years' service following the actual date of employment, employees may accumulate up to two (2) years vacation credits, subject to the approval of the Director of Libraries and CEO, whose decision shall be final and not subject to appeal.
- 11.5 If conflicts arise in the selection of vacation dates, the most senior employee within the branch or work unit concerned shall be granted first selection of vacation dates, subject to the operational requirements of the branch and/or work unit as determined by the manager, and provided vacation requests are received at least one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days in advance. An employee who exercises their seniority in this regard may not again exercise their privilege under this Clause in the subsequent year.
- 11.6 Casual and temporary employees and Circulation Associates shall receive vacation pay in accordance with the Saskatchewan Employment Act. Upon approval from their manager, Casuals and Circulation Associates are entitled to unpaid vacation leave in accordance with the Saskatchewan Employment Act.

## Article 12. Public, Personal, Religious, and Cultural Holidays

#### Statutory Public Holidays

- 12.1 For the purpose of this Agreement, the following statutory public holidays are considered public holidays with pay: (1) New Year's Day (2) Family Day (3) Good Friday (4) Victoria Day (5) Canada Day (6) Saskatchewan Day (7) Labour Day (8) Truth and Reconciliation Day (9)Thanksgiving Day (10) Remembrance Day (11) Christmas Day.
- 12.2 If an applicable municipal, provincial or federal legislative authority should declare a statutory public holiday, other than those in Article 12.1, the Employer recognizes the right of the employee to have such holiday as a paid day off.
- 12.3 When a statutory public holiday falls on an employee's regular day off or part of a day off the employee shall receive an extra day's pay or time off in lieu of such holiday. For full-time employees accumulating hours for purposes of earning an EDO, hours of work in excess of thirty (30) and for all other employees, hours of work in excess of twenty-nine (29) hours in the week in which the statutory public holiday occurs, shall be paid for at time and one-half (1½X) their regular rate of pay. The foregoing shall not apply where an

- alternative statutory public holiday is declared, (i.e.) where Christmas falls on a Sunday and Monday is declared a legal holiday.
- 12.4 Employees required to work on statutory public holidays shall be paid at time and one half (1½X) for all hours worked and an additional day off in lieu to be taken at a time mutually agreed upon between the manager and the employee.
- 12.5 Full-time temporary employees shall receive statutory holiday pay if the holiday occurs during the term of their employment.

#### Personal, Religious, or Cultural Holidays

12.6 With at least four (4) weeks' notice and subject to operational needs, employees are entitled to take up to two (2) days of paid leave. These days are intended to allow employees to observe days in the calendar year that are important to them, personally, religiously, or culturally. Every reasonable effort will be made to ensure employees can take these days on their selected dates. If conflict arises in the selection of these dates, the process in Article 11.5 will apply.

#### Article 13. Sick Leave

- 13.1 Permanent employees working greater than eighteen (18) hours per week will be eligible for sick leave after completion of three (3) months service.
- 13.2 The sick leave plan will consist of short-term disability coverage of up to one hundred and twenty (120) working days, the cost of which will be borne by the Employer. Part-time employee benefits will be prorated.
- 13.3 If an employee who has been absent on sick leave returns to work for a period of thirty (30) calendar days, that employee will requalify for the full benefit provided in 13.2 above. Employees as described in 13.1, who exhaust the benefit provided in 13.2 will be eligible for long-term disability. as described in 13.4 below.
- 13.4 An insured long-term disability plan, funded by equal contributions from permanent employees as described in 13.1 above and the Employer will be implemented. After exhausting short-term disability benefits as described in 13.2 and 13.3 and/or failing to requalify for short-term disability benefits in the manner specified in 13.3, permanent employees may acquire benefits from a long-term disability plan, the nature of which will be as per agreement between management and the Union, subject to carrier approval.
- 13.5 All other employees will be eligible for sick leave after completion of three (3) months accumulated service. Employees shall accumulate sick leave credits at a rate of one and one-quarter (1 1/4) working days per month of accumulated work time (pro-rated). Employees who have a break in service in excess of three (3) months will not be eligible for sick leave until completion of a further three (3)

months accumulated work time.

13.6 Sick Leave for Casuals who have been appointed to Temporary Positions

When a Casual employee has been appointed to a temporary position, Article 13.5 shall apply. The sick leave credits acquired under Article 13.5 will not be carried over for Casual status use. The acquired credits, however, will be retained for use in another temporary position, if the Casual is appointed to such a position within twelve (12) months.

#### Article 14. Circulation Associate Sick Time

- 14.1 Circulation Associates will be eligible for sick leave after completion of three (3) consecutive calendar months of service. Circulation Associates shall accrue paid sick leave at a rate of fifteen (15) working days per year based on Article 10.1 and pro-rated, the cost of which will be borne by the Employer.
- 14.2 Circulation Associates may carry over paid sick leave time not to exceed thirty (30) working days.
- 14.3 Circulation Associates who have a break in service in excess of three (3) consecutive months will not be eligible to use paid sick leave until completion of a further three (3) consecutive calendar months work time.

## Article 15. Maternity, Adoption, and Parental Leave

#### **15.1** Leave without Pay

An employee who has completed thirteen (13) continuous weeks of employment with the Employer, shall be entitled to maternity, adoption, parental, or permanent or long-term primary legal guardianship of a minor leave without pay. The request for leave shall be submitted not later than four (4) weeks prior to the leave date except in the case of adoption or primary legal guardianship of a minor where such leave will commence on the date requested. The maximum leave to be granted shall be in accordance with *The Employment Insurance Act (Canada)* and may be apportioned in any combination prior to and after date of confinement, but may not commence more than twenty-six (26) weeks before the estimated date of birth or the date the child comes into the care of the employee. Employees shall give a minimum four (4) weeks' notice of their intent to return to work.

#### **15.2** Paid Leave

Permanent employees working greater than eighteen (18) hours per week, except casual employees and Circulation Associates, shall be eligible for paid leave, provided the employee has completed at least twenty (20) weeks within the fifty-two (52) weeks of employment with the Library immediately preceding the day on which the requested leave is to commence and is in receipt and provides proof of Employment Insurance benefits pursuant to *The Employment Insurance Act (Canada):* 

- a. The Employer shall pay ninety-five percent (95%) of the employee's regular salary for the Employment Insurance waiting period.
- b. The Employer shall pay the difference between the Employment Insurance benefits and ninety-five percent (95%) of the employee's regular salary for fifteen (15) additional weeks.
- c. Any permanent employee who works less than full-time but works greater than eighteen (18) hours per week, shall receive this benefit on a pro-rated basis.
- 15.3 Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this Agreement, an employee on maternity, adoption or parental leave shall not accumulate sick, study leave or vacation credits during the period of maternity, adoption or parental leave, nor shall they be entitled to pay for sick leave or any public or special holiday that may occur during a period of maternity, adoption or parental leave.
- 15.4 Employees returning from maternity, adoption, parental, or permanent or long-term primary legal guardianship of a minor leave shall return to their former position provided no unforeseen organizational change occurs affecting the position and be paid at the same step of the same salary range as in effect at the time of proceeding on said leave, and with no loss of seniority or benefits accrued to the commencement of the maternity, adoption, parental, or permanent or long-term primary legal guardianship of a minor leave.
- **15.5** The parties acknowledge that individual circumstances may justify a variance of the time limits as set out above.

## Article 16. Compassionate and Bereavement Leave

#### **16.1** Immediate Family

For the purposes of this Article Immediate Family means:

a. The employee's spouse, parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, sibling, or sibling's spouse; or

b. The employee's spouse's parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, sibling, or sibling's spouse;

#### **16.2** Compassionate Leave

Upon notice to their manager, employees will be entitled to compassionate leave with pay of up to five (5) days for each occurrence, to attend to the emergent and/or life-threatening accident or illness of a member of their immediate family.

#### **16.3** Bereavement Leave

Upon notice to their manager, employees will be entitled to bereavement leave with pay of up to five (5) days for each occurrence, which may be taken non-consecutively, to attend to the death of a member of their immediate family.

#### 16.4 Special Circumstances

Employees may apply to the Director of Libraries and CEO for:

- a. Additional days' leave, with or without pay, where the circumstances of the accident, illness or death of the member of the immediate family require more days than those provided for in subsections 16.2 and 16.3; and/or
- b. Leave, with or without pay where the individual involved is not a member of the employee's immediate family, but the employee has a close personal, cultural, and/or religious relationship with that individual.

## Article 17. Victims of Interpersonal Violence Leave

The Employer shall provide leave in accordance with *The Saskatchewan Employment Act* and *The Victims of Interpersonal Violence Act* and *Regulations*.

## Article 18. Jury and Witness Duty

An employee who is:

- a. Required for jury duty; or
- b. Subpoenaed as a witness in a court action except for an appearance arising from an alleged criminal or other statutory offence or a personal civil action; or
- c. Required to be interviewed at or away from their place of work, during their work hours, by an Officer of the Court or an Occupational Health and Safety investigator regarding events occurring in the workplace; or

d. Required to attend or participate in a sentencing circle or other restorative justice processes

shall be granted leave of absence with regular pay. Any monies received by the employee from such attendance, from sources other than the Employer, shall be paid to the Employer.

## Article 19. Employee Development

- 19.1 The Union and the Employer jointly agree that employee development and orientation ensures that the employee gains the necessary skills to perform the best possible job and is instrumental in providing for a more fulfilling work situation. All employees within the bargaining unit will be eligible for employee development privileges.
- 19.2 An employee attending training approved by the Employer on regularly scheduled days off, shall be compensated with equal time off during the same pay period or at a time mutually agreed upon with the manager.
- **19.3** After forty-eight (48) months of accumulated service, and where operations permit, an employee may be eligible for paid study leave for the purpose of:
  - a. participating in approved courses directly related to the employee's position;
  - b. completing course work while enrolled in either the Library Technician Program or the Master of Library Science Program.

Potential study leave time will be earned at a rate of zero point five (0.5) days per month of accumulated full-time service prorated for part-time. At the conclusion of any study leave, time credits will again begin to accrue to the employee.

If an employee has more than one hundred and twenty (120) months of accumulated service, potential study leave time will be earned at a rate of zero point seven five (0.75) days per month of accumulated full-time service prorated for part-time.

In any event, the potential maximum that may be accumulated will not exceed ninety-seven (97) days.

19.4 Study leave may be combined with an extended leave as provided in Article 20. An employee may apply to the Employer to have all or a portion of the tuition paid. In order to qualify for payment of tuition, approval must be obtained prior to commencement of the course, such payment to be made only upon successful completion of the course and upon providing satisfactory receipts and proof of passing.

**19.5** Employees shall be paid regular wages, maintain all rights, and accumulate normal benefits while on paid study leave.

## Article **20**. Leave Without Pay

#### **20.1** General Leave without Pay

Leave of absence without pay not in excess of five (5) working days shall be granted, with accumulation of benefits, by the manager to any employee desiring such leave, provided reasonable notice is given to the manager and the operational needs of the library permit. Granting of leave in excess of five (5) working days shall be at the discretion of the Director of Libraries and CEO.

**20.2** The Employer recognizes the right of an employee to participate in public office.

An employee who seeks the nomination as a candidate for an elective public office, such as a Member of the Saskatchewan Legislative Assembly or a Member of Parliament, an elected position representing First Nation, Métis, or Inuit communities, or an elected position on a Tribal Council, shall, upon written request, be granted partial or full leave of absence to seek such nomination. Should an employee become a candidate for elective office, the Employer shall grant, upon written request, partial or full leave of absence for the duration of the campaign or earlier if requested.

Should an employee be elected to public office, the Employer shall grant partial or full leave upon written request for the term of that office. Seniority shall be retained but not accumulated during any such absence.

#### **20.3** Approved Leave for Casuals

Casual employees may be granted leave of absence without pay and without the accumulation of any benefit. Such leave request must be made at least two (2) weeks in advance.

## Article 21. Union Leave – Employer Paid

The parties recognize the importance of resolving difficulties and promoting harmonious relationships. For those purposes, the Employer agrees to provide leave with pay for the following:

#### **21.1** Joint Union-Management Meetings

The parties agree to hold, at a minimum, monthly joint union-management meetings. The purpose of such meetings shall be to discuss and settle, if

possible, matters of mutual concern. In matters which are personal or particularly sensitive, strict confidentiality shall be maintained.

Such discussions shall not include grievances and changes to the Collective Agreement.

## New policies and amendments to policies shall be communicated to the union prior to implementation.

The President of the local and one other employee representing the Union will be granted leave with pay to attend the joint union-management meetings. The President's delegate will be granted leave with pay if the President is unable to attend to ensure two members attend.

#### **21.2** Leave for Other Meetings

One employee representing the Union will be granted leave with pay to attend the following meetings:

- a. Pre-grievance problem solving pursuant to Article 26;
- b. Grievance;
- c. Discipline;
- d. Investigation; and
- e. Any other meeting or process where the Union representative request is initiated by the Employer.

#### **21.3** Leave for Bargaining

The Employer will provide leave with pay for the three (3) members of the Union's bargaining team who are the highest wage earners.

## Article 22. Union Leave – Unpaid

Union leave without pay will be provided insofar as the normal operations of the Library permit, as determined by the Director of Libraries and CEO.

#### **22.1** Union Education Leave

An employee who is appointed as a delegate to attend a conference, convention, educational workshop or school in connection with CUPE Saskatchewan or CUPE National, shall, upon providing two weeks' notice, be granted leave of

absence without pay to attend the same.

Where the union has approved such education leave during scheduled work hours, the wages and benefits of an employee on union leave will continue uninterrupted during the union leave. Such salary and prorated benefit costs will be recovered by the Employer from the Union.

#### 22.2 Other Leave for Union Business

Upon providing one (1) week's notice, an employee who is appointed by the Union to assist with preparation for investigations, grievances, arbitrations, negotiations, and hearings, shall be granted leave of absence, for a maximum of one (1) day, to attend the same.

Where the union has approved such leave for union business during scheduled work hours, the salary and prorated benefits of an employee on union leave will continue uninterrupted during the union leave. Such salary and prorated benefit costs will be recovered by the Employer from the Union.

Upon application to the Director of Libraries and CEO, other leave for Union business may be granted:

- a. Where, in emergent circumstances, it is not possible to provide one week's notice; or
- b. Where leave is required for longer durations; or
- c. Where the union deems it reasonable to have other union representatives attend meetings.

#### 22.3 Selected for CUPE Saskatchewan or CUPE National Leave

Upon no less than two **(2)** weeks' notice, and having informed the Employer of the duration of the leave, an employee, who has completed one (1) year of service and who is selected for a position with CUPE Saskatchewan or CUPE National, for short-term coverage, shall be granted leave of absence without pay.

Upon no less than two (2) weeks' notice, an extension of the leave may be granted.

Such leave, including extensions, shall be to a maximum of twelve (12) months.

An employee may only be granted two (2) such leaves, including extensions, within a five (5) year period.

No claim shall be entertained for any promotion effected during the employee's

absence on leave. During the absence, the employee shall retain and accrue seniority.

#### **22.4** Elected for CUPE Saskatchewan or CUPE National Leave

An employee, who has completed one (1) year of service and who is elected to a full-time position with CUPE Saskatchewan or CUPE National, shall provide as much written notice as possible and shall be granted leave of absence without pay for a maximum of two (2) consecutive years. No extension will be granted.

An employee may only be granted one such leave within a five (5) year period.

No claim shall be entertained for any promotion effected during the employee's absence on leave. During the absence, the employee shall retain and accrue seniority.

Notwithstanding the definition of a term position in Definitions where an employee who has been elected to a full-time position under this article, the Employer may post a term replacement for the duration of any such leave.

#### Article 23. Self-Funded Leave

- **23.1** In this section, Self-Funded Leave means:
  - a. The system where a permanent employee in a full- or part-time position may be permitted to fund a paid leave for an extended period by means of an adjustment to normal income over several years.
  - b. The leave is established in accordance with a defined formula of income adjustment and paid leave.
  - c. The leave shall not result in any increase in costs to the Employer and the Employer assumes no responsibilities for any consequences arising from the leave.
- 23.2 Upon application to the Director of Libraries and CEO, and after twenty-four (24) months accumulated service, and subject to operational requirements, a permanent employee in a full- or part-time position will be considered for a self-funded leave plan. Approval of such leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 23.3 The leave shall be arranged a minimum of twenty-four (24) months in advance of the start of the leave and shall provide for a self-funded continuous leave of a minimum of six (6) months to a maximum of twelve (12) months in a six (6) year period.
- **23.4** During the period during which the funds are being accumulated, the Employer

shall maintain benefits as if the employee were being paid full salary. The employee and the Employer shall share premium costs. During the leave period, the employee is responsible for both employee and employer portions of the premium costs.

- 23.5 Upon return from the leave, the employee shall be returned to their former position provided no unforeseen organizational change has occurred affecting their position, in which case the provisions of Article 30 shall apply. Upon return from the leave, the employee shall remain in the employ of the Employer for a period equal to the length of the leave.
- **23.6** The employee shall notify the Union of their application for leave. The Employer shall continue to deduct monthly dues from the earnings of the employee.
- 23.7 An employee may request a change of dates up to six (6) months before commencement of leave, and may only do so once.

## Article 24. Technological Change

- **24.1** In this section Technological Change means:
  - a. The introduction by the Public Library into its work, undertaking or business, of equipment or material of a different nature or kind than that previously utilized by the Library in the operation of the work, undertaking or business;
  - b. A change in the manner in which the Employer carries on the work, undertaking or business that is directly related to the introduction of that equipment or material; or,
  - c. The removal by an Employer of any part of their work, undertaking or business.

#### **24.2** Information Exchange

A joint committee formed of five (5) Union and five (5) Employer representatives will meet three times (3X) per year and upon request of either party to discuss Employer's plans with regards to new technology and to consider the possible effects of the change.

24.3 The parties acknowledge that after having discussed possible proposals regarding the introduction of technological change, that the Union may submit views regarding such change to the Employer within six (6) weeks of having been advised of the potential change as provided for in the Information Exchange Committee as described in 24.2 above.

- 24.4 The Employer shall notify the employees affected and the Union as soon as possible before the introduction of any technological change in the workplace, with written notice of such change to be given three (3) months in advance.
- **24.5** The Employer shall give notice in writing as provided for in part (d) when it proposes to effect a technological change. Such notice shall state:
  - a. The nature of the technological change;
  - b. The date upon which the Employer proposes to effect the technological change;
  - c. The number and type of employees likely to be affected by the technological change; and,
  - d. The effect that the technological change is likely to have on the terms and conditions or tenure of employment of the employees affected.
- **24.6** The parties shall negotiate the impact of the technological change as per *The Saskatchewan Employment Act*.
- 24.7 No permanent employee shall be dismissed or have their regular hours reduced by the Employer because of technological change. An employee displaced by such change will be guaranteed employment in the system at no reduction in salary. If the employee refuses such transfer the employee shall be subject to layoff.
- **24.8** Employees whose jobs are affected by the introduction of technological change and who require special training to retain 'their' current position shall be allowed the necessary time to receive such training during their normal working hours.
- **24.9** Electronic Monitoring

The parties recognize that volume measurement may be necessary to obtain an objective evaluation of the level of production of a group, a section or an office. However, there shall be no electronic monitoring of an individual's work output for the purpose of evaluating performance.

## Article 25. Occupational Health and Safety

25.1 The Union and the Employer shall cooperate in promoting and improving workplace practices to provide a safe and healthy work environment. The Union, the Employer, and the employees shall work together to provide a safe and healthy work environment, including, but not limited to, adequate training, equipment, and

- procedures to ensure the well-being of employees as included and outlined in the Safety and Security MOAs of the collective agreement.
- 25.2 All employees shall be allocated work time to review any policies and procedures related to Occupational Health and Safety and are expected to review, be familiar with and follow said policies and procedures.
- 25.3 Training shall include safety and security procedures specific to each of the locations where an employee may be assigned.
- 25.4 As prescribed by Section 3 of the The Saskatchewan Employment Act (SEA), the Employer shall develop and implement a written violence prevention policy statement and prevention plan in consultation with the Occupational Health Committees.
- 25.5 Further to the definition of working alone in the Section 3-24 (1) of the Occupational Health and Safety Regulations and for the safety and security of employees and patrons, the Employer shall ensure that no library is open to the public unless there are at least two (2) of employees, managers, or guards in the library building or leased space.
- 25.6 The Employer shall ensure all employees working in a library building or leased space have access to a communication device for use while working.
- 25.7 The Employer shall provide any employee working offsite with a communication device or communication procedure for use while working. For the purposes of this article, working offsite refers to any location that is not part of a library building or leased space where an employee may report to work for SPL.
- 25.8 Occupational Health Committees will be established to appropriately represent the places of work of employees. The Committees will align with the requirements of Committees in *The Saskatchewan Employment Act*.
- **25.9** The Employer Chairperson shall cause the names of the Committee members to be posted on the Employer's **designated OHS** bulletin boards.
- **25.10** The Committee(s) shall have a continuing concern with respect to the health and safety of the employees of the Library as herein represented. Meetings shall take place at a minimum of once quarterly and a maximum of once monthly or more frequently if the Committee(s) as a whole decides, and minutes of the same made available to the Employer and the Union.
- **25.11** The duties of the Committee include:
  - a. The receipt, consideration and disposition of complaints **and safety incident reports** respecting the health and safety of the employees, **including** the provision of recommendations to SPL, **the employer**, for strategic resolution

of such issues.

- b. The participation in the **prevention**, identification and control of health and safety hazards within the place of employment.
- c. Cooperation with the Occupational Health and Safety Division.
- d. The maintenance of records in connection with the receipt and disposition of complaints and the attendance to other matters relating to the duties of the Committee as may be contained in *The Saskatchewan Employment Act.*
- e. The setting up of emergency meetings of the Committee to deal with any emergency problems.
- f. Worksite Occupational Health and Safety Inspections
- g. Health and safety training.
- **25.12 Time** spent by the employees in performing their duties as members of the Occupational Health Committee(s) shall be considered as time worked, and payment shall be made on the basis of straight-time earnings only.
- 25.13 Such Committee(s) shall not deal with matters which ordinarily are or become a subject for negotiations between the Employer and the Union but may make recommendations to the Parties.

#### Article 26. Violence and Harassment

#### 26.1 Violence

As defined in Section 3-26(1) of the Occupational Health and Safety Regulations, "violence" means the attempted, threatened, or actual conduct of a person that causes or is likely to cause injury and includes any threatening statement or behaviour that gives a worker reasonable cause to believe that the worker is at risk of injury.

#### 26.2 Harassment

As defined in Section 3-1(1)(L) of the Saskatchewan Employment Act, "harassment" means:

(i) any inappropriate conduct, comment, display, action or gesture by a person towards a worker:

#### (A) that either:

- (I) is based on any prohibited ground as defined in *The Saskatchewan Human Rights Code*, 2018 or on physical size or weight; or
- (II) subject to subsections (4) and (5), adversely affects the worker's psychological or physical well-being and that the person knows or ought reasonably to know would cause the worker to be humiliated or intimidated; and
- (B) that constitutes a threat to the health or safety of the worker; or
- (ii) any conduct, comment, display, action or gesture by a person towards a worker that:
  - (A) is of a sexual nature; and
  - (B) the person knows or ought reasonably to know is unwelcome

#### Article 27. Grievance Procedure

- 27.1 A grievance shall be defined as any difference or dispute between the Employer and any employee, group of employees or the Union arising out of an alleged violation of this Collective Agreement or legislation.
- 27.2 The parties agree that it is important to address issues in a timely manner. However, should one of the parties be unable to meet a timeline as prescribed in this article, they will, within the timeline prescribed, notify the other party in writing of the need for an extension.

#### **27.3** Problem-Solving

Upon becoming aware of a potential grievance, the Union shall first discuss the matter with the employee's manager or Human Resources to attempt to resolve the concern.

Where a concern is resolved through Problem-Solving, the Union and the Employer will document and sign the agreed resolution.

Exceptions to the Problem-Solving Step are terminations which grievances shall commence at Step 2.

#### **27.4** Step 1 – Manager Hearing

If the discussions with the manager or Human Resources do not resolve the concern, and within four (4) calendar weeks of becoming aware of the potential grievance, the Union Grievance Committee may provide a grievance in writing to the manager, with a copy to Human Resources.

The grievance document shall state the nature of the alleged violation and where applicable, the specific Articles or legislation allegedly violated.

The manager shall convene a hearing within two (2) calendar weeks of receipt of the grievance.

The manager shall give a decision, in writing, within two (2) calendar weeks of the hearing of the grievance. Failing a satisfactory solution, the Union may proceed to Step 2 – Director of Libraries and CEO Hearing.

#### **27.5** Step 2 – Director of Libraries and CEO Hearing

Within two (2) calendar weeks of receipt of the decision of the manager, the Union may submit the grievance in writing to the Director of Libraries and CEO.

Within two (2) calendar weeks of the receipt of the grievance, the Director of Libraries and CEO shall convene a hearing. The Director of Libraries and CEO shall notify the Union of the decision in writing within two (2) calendar weeks. Failing a satisfactory solution, the Union may proceed to Step 3 – Arbitration.

Prior to the submission to arbitration either party has the right to submit the grievance to the Saskatoon Public Library Board for their review. Notice of intention to proceed to the Saskatoon Public Library Board must be given within one (1) calendar week of receipt of the Director of Libraries and CEO's decision. The Union will be advised of the date upon which the grievance will be heard and shall have the right to appear before the Saskatoon Public Library Board at that time.

The decision of the Employer will be conveyed to the Union within one (1) calendar week of the hearing.

#### **27.6** Step 3 – Arbitration

Within four (4) calendar weeks of the receipt of the decision of the Director of Libraries and CEO, the Union may refer the matter to a Board of Arbitration. If such referral is not made within four (4) calendar weeks, the grievance is considered abandoned.

If a grievance is referred to a Board of Arbitration, each party shall nominate one (1) member to such Board within seven (7) days following notice by either party to the other that the grievance is being referred to a Board of Arbitration, and the third (3rd) member and Chairperson of the Board of Arbitration shall be appointed by the parties. If the parties cannot agree upon the appointment of the Chairperson within seven (7) calendar days after the parties have informed each other of their respective nominees, the Minister of Labour shall be requested to appoint the third (3rd) member and Chairperson of the Board.

Each party shall pay its own costs and expenses in connection with the Board and shall share equally the costs and expenses of the Chairperson.

The decision reached by the Arbitrator shall deal with all aspects of the matter or matters in dispute and shall be final and binding on the parties. The Arbitrator shall not amend, modify or otherwise change this Collective Agreement.

Should an employee be penalized, disciplined, laid off, demoted or terminated and it is later established by proceedings under this section that such discipline penalty, layoff, demotion or termination was unjust or not in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, the employee shall be immediately returned to their former status in all respects and shall be compensated for all monetary loss suffered by reason of such penalty, discipline, layoff, demotion or termination provided. If an employee has been penalized in any way and the parties agree, or the Board of Arbitration decides that such penalty was excessive, but that some penalty ought to be imposed, the parties may agree, or the Board of Arbitration may decide, to impose a lesser penalty on such employee.

The Employer agrees to cooperate with the stewards in the performance of their duties as provided in this Article. The Union recognizes that each steward is employed to perform work for the Employer and that the Employee will not leave their work without permission from their manager to perform their duties as stewards under the Agreement. Such permission will be given in a timely manner and not be unduly withheld. The Union shall advise the Employer as to the names of stewards or acting stewards.

# Article 28 Discipline

The provisions outlined in this Article shall apply to all forms of discipline, unless otherwise stated.

#### 28.1 Process

The Employer shall advise the employee and the Union when a meeting is disciplinary.

Employees will have the protection of due process. In all cases of discipline, the burden of proof of just cause shall rest with the Employer. Evidence presented shall pertain only to the reasons stated in the letter of discipline to the employee.

When the Employer deems it necessary to have an investigation of a formal written complaint conducted by an external investigator, a confidential executive summary of the investigation report, insofar as it relates to those employees in scope of the Union, will be provided to the President of the Union.

When the Employer requires an employee to take a leave from work during an investigatory process such leave will be with full pay and benefits and will not be considered disciplinary in nature.

An employee or Union official authorized by that employee may submit a written request to either the Director of Libraries and CEO or Human Resources to have access to the employee's file. Such access will be granted within three (3) working days of the request.

#### 28.2 Disciplinary Actions and Process

When the Employer requires an employee to attend a meeting that is disciplinary in nature, the employee shall have the right to union representation as determined by the Union, as well as support of a First Nation, Métis, or Inuit Knowledge Keeper if the employee chooses. Should the Employer deny union representation, the outcome of such meetings will not become part of the employee's file.

Discipline shall be administered in a timely and respectful fashion.

With the exception of Articles 28.3 a. Verbal Warning and 28.3 d. Dismissal, written discipline given to an employee will include reasons for the discipline, expectations for future performance and consequences of progressive discipline, with copies forwarded to the Union and Human Resources within three (3) working days.

Should the employee be unavailable to attend the disciplinary meeting, the Employer will notify the employee and the Union of the discipline in writing.

An employee may respond in writing to the discipline within four (4) calendar weeks from the date the discipline is given, and such response will become part of the employee's file.

If the Union considers the action unjustified, it shall have, from the date the discipline is given, four (4) calendar weeks in which to file a grievance.

#### **28.3** Progressive Discipline

The Employer endorses the concept of progressive discipline in situations of poor performance. However, the Employer reserves the right to use any disciplinary action deemed appropriate, regardless of the order of the following clauses:

#### a. Verbal Warning

Should the employee be unavailable to attend the meeting at which the verbal warning is conveyed, the verbal warning may be forwarded to the employee in

writing with a copy to the Union but shall not form part of the employee's file.

Should the employee choose to respond to a verbal warning in writing, such response will become part of the employee's file.

#### b. Written Reprimand

A written reprimand will be removed from the employee's file after two (2) years of subsequent active employment during which no disciplinary action is taken.

After one (1) year, an employee and/or the Union may request in writing that a reprimand be removed from the employee's file before the expiration of the two (2) calendar year period. The outcome of the review will be relayed to the employee and the Union in writing.

#### c. Suspension

The Employer reserves the right to suspend an employee for a period of up to two (2) weeks.

A letter of suspension will be removed from the employee's file after three (3) years of subsequent active employment during which no disciplinary action is taken.

After two (2) years, an employee and/or the Union may request in writing that a suspension be removed from the employee's file before the expiration of the two (2) year period. The outcome of the review will be relayed to the employee and the Union in writing.

#### d. Dismissal

Where an employee is dismissed the Employer will provide written reasons to the employee, with copies forwarded to the Union and Human Resources within three (3) working days.

# Article 29. Resignations and Terminations for Permanent and Temporary Employees

#### **29.1** Resignations

a. Where possible, all employees resigning from their employment will give four (4) weeks' notice in writing to their manager.

# b. Employees who retire or resign may request to be added to the casual list.

#### **29.2** Notice for Termination and Layoff

Except in cases of dismissal for just cause, notice of layoff pursuant to Article **30**, or notice where a permanent employee's employment is terminated, shall be given as follows:

- a. Where the employee has passed probation and worked less than five (5) years, four (4) weeks' notice;
- b. Where the employee's length of service exceeds five (5) years but is less than ten (10) years, six (6) weeks' notice; or
- c. Where the employee's length of service exceeds ten (10) years, eight (8) weeks' notice.

#### Article **30**. Layoff for Permanent and Temporary Employees

#### **30.1** Layoff Principle

The principle of last-on-first-off according to seniority applies within a position title across the bargaining unit whenever a reduction in permanent full-time or part-time positions become necessary.

#### **30.2** Notice of Layoff

- a. Should any permanent position be eliminated or undergo a reduction in hours for any reason, the affected permanent incumbent will receive a written Notice of Layoff, the length of which notice will be in accordance with Article 29.2 or as required by law, whichever is greater.
- b. The Employer shall determine whether the employee will work during the notice period set out in Article 29.2 or will receive pay in lieu of notice. Where the Employer determines the employee is to receive pay in lieu of notice, the Employer will determine whether such pay will be as a lump sum or by salary continuance.
- c. A permanent employee who is in a term position and who receives Notice of Layoff that their permanent position is eliminated, or their hours of work are reduced, will be subject to Article 30. Other affected permanent employees shall be subject to the provisions of Article 30.
- d. A permanent employee under assessment as set out in Article 7 who receives Notice of Layoff will retain the ability to revert to their previous

- position and any affected permanent employees shall be subject to the provisions of Article **30**.
- e. Upon providing Notice of Layoff, the Employer will suspend any recruitment processes for positions in scope of the bargaining unit and will repost all vacant positions internally for one (1) week.
- f. The Notice of Layoff will refer to Articles 29 and 30, and will specifically include:
  - i. The length of notice to which the employee is entitled, per Article 29.2:
  - ii. Whether the employee is being provided working notice or pay in lieu of notice, per Article **30**.2 b.;
  - iii. If pay in lieu of notice, then whether they will receive salary continuance or a lump sum payment, per Article **30**.2 b.;
  - iv. The available Layoff Options, per Article **30**.4;
  - v. Direction to contact Human Resources in writing to schedule a Layoff Meeting as per Article **30**.3, to discuss their Layoff Options, per Article **30**.4.
- g. Where an employee has received pay in lieu of notice in a lump sum, and is subsequently selected for, or bumps into, a position during the time that would have been their notice period, an adjustment will be made so that the employee does not receive both regular wages and the lump sum.
- h. A copy of all Notices of Layoff will be sent to the Union.

#### **30.3** Layoff Meeting with Human Resources

- a. Employees who receive Notice of Layoff shall contact Human Resources in writing within seventy-two (72) hours of receiving the Notice of Layoff to schedule a Layoff Meeting to discuss the Layoff Options set out in Article **30**.4.
- b. If the employee fails without good and sufficient reason within seventy-two (72) hours following the receipt of Notice of Layoff to contact Human Resources to schedule a Layoff Meeting, the Employer reserves the right to provide the employee with pay in lieu of notice in accordance with Article 29.2, and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.
- c. At the Layoff Meeting, Human Resources will inform the employee of the following:

- The Layoff Options available to the employee as set out in Article 30.4;
- ii. Any vacant positions to which the employee may apply;
- iii. Possible positions for bumping, in the order as laid out in Article **30**.5;
- iv. Pension and benefits information:
- v. The date and time by which the employee must contact Human Resources and the appropriate contact information.
- d. Following the Layoff Meeting, the employee shall, within seventy-two (72) hours, advise Human Resources in writing, of their choice from the list of Layoff Options available to them as set out in Article **30**.4.
- e. If the employee fails without good and sufficient reason within seventy-two (72) hours following the Layoff Meeting to inform Human Resources of the Layoff Option they have elected, the Employer reserves the right to provide the employee with pay in lieu of notice in accordance with Article 29.2, and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.

#### **30.4** Layoff Options

An employee who has been provided with Notice of Layoff shall elect one of the following:

a. Layoff and Pay in Lieu of Notice

An employee who elects in writing to accept layoff and to receive pay in lieu of notice, shall sign an agreement acknowledging their election, and their employment and seniority rights will cease effective the date of their election.

OR

b. Layoff and Seniority Rights for Eighteen (18) months

Where an employee elects in writing to retain seniority rights as defined in Article 6.1, they shall be provided pay in lieu of notice, if applicable, and shall retain and accrue seniority for a maximum period of eighteen (18) months. The eighteen (18) month period begins the date the election is made.

Other than maintaining and accruing seniority as set out above, an employee who elects this option will be considered to be laid off.

During the eighteen (18) month period the individual may apply for internal vacant permanent positions and will be considered for positions according to

the provisions of Article 7.

Seniority rights cease after eighteen (18) months unless the individual has been appointed to a permanent position.

OR

#### c) Bumping

Where an employee advises Human Resources in writing of their election to bump, Article **30**.5 will apply.

#### **30.5** Bumping

#### a. Bumping Principles

The following principles apply to bumping:

- The principle of last-on-first-off according to seniority applies within a pay band;
- ii. The bumping employee will be offered positions in the order outlined in Article **30**.5 b. for which they have the qualifications;
- iii. Qualifications for a position will be as indicated in the most recent job description for that position except where the Employer can demonstrate there has been a valid change in the qualifications required for the position;
- iv. An employee who has opted to bump will be offered positions at a wage step closest to but not exceeding the employees' former salary:
- v. Assessment periods shall be waived for permanent employees who choose bumping;
- vi. Employees who have been bumped will have access to the provisions of this article in order of seniority, as soon as is reasonable;
- vii. The Employer will notify the Union on a weekly basis of the status of all employees who have chosen to bump or have been bumped.

### b. Bumping Process

i. For full-time permanent employees

If the employee is laid off from a full-time permanent position:

- 1. Human Resources will within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving notice of the employee's election to bump, arrange a Qualification Meeting to determine the employee's current qualifications.
- Once qualifications have been determined, the full-time employee will choose whether they want to be offered only full-time positions or a combination of full-time and part-time positions. Human Resources will use this choice to offer positions to the laid off employee.
- 3. Of the position titles for which the laid-off employee is deemed to be qualified, two (2) offers will be made.
- 4. Each offer will be from a distinct position title selected through the following process:
  - A. First, the position title held by the least senior employee in the same pay band;
  - B. Then the position title held by the next least senior employee in a distinct position title in the same pay band until two (2) distinct position titles can be offered;
  - C. If two **(2)** distinct position titles cannot be found in the same pay band, then the process will move to the next pay band down, for one or both positions.
  - D. Then the position title held by the employee with the least seniority in the next pay band down;
  - E. Then the position title held by the next least senior person in a distinct position title in that same next pay band down until two (2) distinct position titles can be offered;
  - F. If two **(2)** distinct position titles cannot be found in this pay band, for one or both positions, then the process will repeat from C. (above) until two **(2)** distinct position titles can be offered.
- 5. If the laid-off employee chooses not to take either of the offered positions, they will be subject to Article **30**.4 a.
- 6. If no position can be found for which the employee is qualified,

then the employee will be given the option of either Article **30**.4 a. or Article **30**.4 b.

ii. For part-time permanent employees

If the employee was laid off from a permanent part-time position:

- 1. Human Resources will within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving notice of the employee's election to bump, arrange a Qualification Meeting to determine the employee's current qualifications.
- Once qualifications have been determined, the part-time employee will only be offered part-time positions provided that the number of hours is equal to or less than their former permanent position.
- 3. Of the position titles for which the laid-off employee is deemed to be qualified, two (2) offers will be made.
- 4. Each offer will be from a distinct position title selected through the following process:
  - A. First, the position title held by the least senior employee in the same pay band;
  - B. Then the position title held by the next least senior person in a distinct position title in the same pay band until two
    (2) distinct position titles can be offered;
  - C. If two (2) distinct position titles cannot be found in the same pay band, then the process will move to the next pay band down, for one or both positions.
  - D. Then the position title held by the employee with the least seniority in the next pay band down;
  - E. Then the position title held by the next least senior person in a distinct position title in that same next pay band down until two (2) distinct position titles can be offered;
  - F. If two **(2)** distinct position titles cannot be found in this pay band, for one or both positions, then the process will repeat from C. (above) until two **(2)** distinct position titles can be offered.

- 5. If the laid-off employee chooses not to take either of the offered positions, they will be subject to Article **30**.4 a.
- 6. If no positions can be found for which the employee is qualified, then the employee will be given the option of either Article **30**.4 a. or Article **30**.4 b.

#### iii) Notice to Human Resources

Within forty-eight (48) hours of the Qualifications Meeting, the employee who is subject to layoff shall inform Human Resources in writing of the position title into which they have chosen to bump.

If the employee fails without good and sufficient reason within forty-eight (48) hours following the Qualifications Meeting to inform Human Resources of their decision that they will or will not accept the position offered, the Employer reserves the right to provide the employee with pay in lieu of notice as laid out in Article 29.2, and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.

#### **30.6** Failure to Report to Work

Except for good and sufficient reason, an employee will be deemed to have voluntarily left the service of the Employer and their employment and seniority rights shall cease where the employee has accepted an offer of a position and then fails to report to work on the date and time specified.

# Article **31**. Resignations and Terminations for Circulation Associates

#### **31.1** Resignation

Where possible, a Circulation Associate will provide four (4) weeks' notice in writing to their manager.

#### **31.2** Notice and Termination

Except in cases of dismissal for just cause, where a Circulation Associate's service has been terminated, the Employer shall provide the following written notice, in accordance with *The Saskatchewan Employment Act*, or equivalent pay in lieu of notice:

- a. Where the Circulation Associate has been employed for greater than thirteen (13) weeks but one (1) year or less, then one (1) week of notice;
- b. Where the Circulation Associate has been employed for more than one

- (1) year but three (3) years or less, then two (2) weeks of notice;
- c. Where employment has been more than three (3) years but five (5) years or less, then four (4) weeks of notice;
- d. Where employment has been more than five (5) years but is less than ten (10) years, then six (6) weeks of notice;
- e. Where the employment has been ten (10) years or more then eight (8) weeks of notice.

# Article 32. Layoffs for Circulation Associates

#### Layoff

Where a change in schedule or a reduction of hours for Circulation Associates is required by the Employer, the following will apply:

#### i. Problem-solving

The manager will inform those Circulation Associates affected by the change or reduction and will undertake a problem-solving process to determine if the changes may be implemented without having to proceed to layoff.

Affected Circulation Associates may choose to accept the new schedules, by seniority.

Those Circulation Associates affected by a schedule change who are unable to accept a new schedule with be subject to layoff with Layoff Options as outlined in Article 32 b.

The Union will be informed of the problem-solving process and its outcomes.

#### ii. Layoff Process

When a reduction of hours occurs at a branch or system-wide and layoff is required, the least senior Circulation Associates in the branch, where the reduction occurs at a branch, or the least senior Circulation Associates in the system, where the reduction is system-wide, will be provided with written Notice of Layoff, the length of which notice will be in accordance with Article **31**.2.

The Notice of Layoff will include the length of notice to which the

Circulation Associate is entitled, the Layoff Options available to them and direction to contact Human Resources within seventy-two (72) hours following the receipt of their Notice of Layoff to schedule a Layoff Meeting to discuss their layoff options.

If the Circulation Associate fails without good and sufficient reason within seventy-two (72) hours following the receipt of their Notice of Layoff to contact Human Resources to schedule a meeting, the Employer reserves the right to provide the Circulation Associate with pay in lieu of notice in accordance with Article 31.2 and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.

#### a. Layoff Meeting

At the Layoff Meeting, Human Resources will inform the Circulation Associate of the following:

- 1. Their available layoff options;
- 2. Any vacant Schedule Assignments to which the Circulation Associates may apply;
- **3.** Their possible bumping options;
- **4.** Pension and benefits information:
- 5. The date and time by which the Circulation Associate must contact Human Resources of their choice and the appropriate contact information.

If the Circulation Associate fails without good and sufficient reason to inform Human Resources of the layoff option the laid off Circulation Associate has chosen by the stated date, the Employer reserves the right to provide the Circulation Associate with pay in lieu of notice in accordance with Article **31**.2 and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.

#### b. Layoff Options

A Circulation Associate who has been provided with Notice of Layoff shall elect one of the following:

i. Layoff and pay in lieu of notice as per Article **31**.2

A Circulation Associate who elects in writing to accept layoff and to receive pay in lieu of notice, shall sign an agreement acknowledging their election, and their employment and seniority rights will cease effective the date of their election;

ii. Layoff and retain seniority rights for eighteen (18) months

Where a Circulation Associate elects in writing to retain seniority rights as defined in Article 6.1, they shall be provided pay in lieu of notice, if applicable, and shall retain and accrue seniority for a maximum period of eighteen (18) months. The eighteen (18) month period begins the date the election is made.

Other than maintaining and accruing seniority as set out above, a Circulation Associate who elects this option will be considered to be laid off.

During the eighteen (18) month period the individual may apply for vacant Schedule Assignments or other positions and will be considered according to the provisions of Article 7. Seniority rights cease after eighteen (18) months unless the individual has been appointed to a vacant Schedule Assignment or other position within SPL; Or

iii. Bumping according to subsection c. below.

#### c. Bumping

Where a Circulation Associate has elected in writing to bump, the laid off Circulation Associate will be provided with two (2) positions from which to choose. The Circulation Associate will be offered Schedule Assignments of equal or fewer hours than the Schedule Assignment the laid off Circulation Associate held before layoff, starting with the Schedule Assignments with the closest as possible number of hours to the Schedule Assignment they held before layoff. The laid off Circulation Associate will only be offered Schedule Assignments held by less senior Circulation Associates.

Should the Circulation Associate choose not to bump into either Schedule Assignment the laid off Circulation Associate is offered or fails to advise Human Resources in writing of which Schedule Assignment they wish to bump within forty-eight (48) hours of offer, the laid off Circulation Associate will be provided with pay in lieu of notice as per Article 31.2 and notice that their employment and seniority rights have ceased.

#### d. Miscellaneous

- Assessment periods shall be waived for Circulation Associates who have chosen to bump or who are placed in a vacant Schedule Assignment.
- ii. Circulation Associates who have been bumped will have access to their options under Article **31**.2, in order of

- seniority, as soon as is reasonable.
- iii. The Employer will notify the Union on a weekly basis of the status of those Circulation Associates who have chosen to bump, who have been bumped or who have been placed in a vacant Schedule Assignment.

# Article 33. Superannuation and Retirement

Permanent employees are included in the City of Saskatoon General Superannuation Plan and contributions to the General Superannuation Plan fund are deducted from salary as per the General Superannuation Plan scheme.

# Article 34. Group Life Insurance

- **34.1** Participation in the Group Life Plan, in accordance with its provisions shall be a condition of employment for all employees appointed to permanent positions in excess of eighteen (18) hours per week. Temporary and part-time employees working in excess of eighteen (18) hours per week shall have the option of joining the Group Insurance Plan.
- **34.2** The following coverage shall apply to employees enrolled in the group insurance program:
  - a. <u>Basic Coverage</u> Two times (2X) annual salary for all employees, the cost of such insurance shall be shared equally by the employee and Employer.
  - b. Optional Coverage Three times (3X) annual salary, the cost of such insurance shall be shared equally by the employee and the Employer.
  - c. Optional Coverage Four times (4X) annual salary, the cost of such insurance in excess of b. above shall be paid by the employee.
  - d. Optional Dependent Coverage Coverage of three thousand dollars (\$3,000) for the employee's spouse, and coverage of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for each dependent shall be paid by the employee.
  - e. Optional Retirement Coverage Effective April 28, 2005, upon early retirement, the employee has the option of a fifty thousand dollar (\$50,000) life insurance policy to age sixty-five (65) by paying both employee and Employer premiums. Application must be made at the time of retirement.

# Article 35. Transportation

Employees authorized and required to use their vehicles for the business of the Employer shall:

- a) receive the per kilometer rate set by the Canada Revenue Agency for the kilometers travelled, and
- b) if free parking is not available, be reimbursed for the cost of parking upon provision of a receipt.

#### Article 36. Dental and Medical/Vision Care Plan

- **36.1** Dental Plan The Employer shall provide payment capped at the amount of 1% of payroll for a dental benefit plan.
- **36.2** Medical/Vision Plan the Employer shall provide payment capped at the amount of 1% of payroll for a medical/vision plan.

### Article 37. Wages

Wages for employees covered by this Agreement shall be as per Wage Schedule. Parttime and casual employees accepting additional hours shall be paid at the rate of pay of the classification level in which they are working.

The rates of pay in the Wage Schedules shall be adjusted as follows:

July 01, 2023	3.0%
January 01, 2024	2.0%
October 01, 2024	Market adjustment increase to
	Pay Band 01, Step 01 to \$18.60
	hourly (adjusting the rest of the
	steps in the band accordingly)
January 01, 2025	2.25%
January 01, 2026	2.25%
January 01, 2027	3.00%

#### Wage Steps for Casuals

0 to 1885 hours	Step 1
1886 to 3770 hours	Step 2
3771 to 5655 hours	Step 3
Maximum (5656 plus) hours	Step 4

CUPE 2669

Effective: July 01, 2023 to September

Effective: July 01, 2023 to September 19, 2023

Pay b	and 1
-------	-------

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$14.9242	\$1,172.15	\$2,344.30	\$28,131.60
2	\$15.2352	\$1,196.57	\$2,393.14	\$28,717.68
3	\$15.5461	\$1,220.99	\$2,441.98	\$29,303.76
maximum	\$15.8570	\$1,245.41	\$2,490.82	\$29,889.84

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$20.4006	\$1,602.26	\$3,204.52	\$38,454.24
2	\$21.3219	\$1,674.62	\$3,349.24	\$40,190.88
3	\$22.3185	\$1,752.89	\$3,505.78	\$42,069.36
4	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
maximum	\$24.2161	\$1,901.93	\$3,803.86	\$45,646.32

No Current Positions

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.3219	\$1,674.62	\$3,349.24	\$40,190.88
2	\$22.3185	\$1,752.89	\$3,505.78	\$42,069.36
3	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
4	\$24.2161	\$1,901.93	\$3,803.86	\$45,646.32
maximum	\$25.5142	\$2,003.89	\$4,007.78	\$48,093.36

No Current Positions

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.3183	\$1,752.88	\$3,505.76	\$42,069.12
2	\$23.3335	\$1,832.61	\$3,665.22	\$43,982.64
3	\$24.4048	\$1,916.75	\$3,833.50	\$46,002.00
4	\$25.5141	\$2,003.88	\$4,007.76	\$48,093.12
maximum	\$26.4847	\$2,080.11	\$4,160.22	\$49,922.64

Effective: July 01, 2023 to September 19, 2023

Pay	band	5
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
2	\$24.4049	\$1,916.76	\$3,833.52	\$46,002.24
3	\$25.5142	\$2,003.89	\$4,007.78	\$48,093.36
4	\$26.4848	\$2,080.12	\$4,160.24	\$49,922.88
maximum	\$27.9391	\$2,194.34	\$4,388.68	\$52,664.16

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

## Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.4048	\$1,916.75	\$3,833.50	\$46,002.00
2	\$25.5141	\$2,003.88	\$4,007.76	\$48,093.12
3	\$26.6983	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
4	\$27.9390	\$2,194.33	\$4,388.66	\$52,663.92
maximum	\$29.0063	\$2,278.15	\$4,556.30	\$54,675.60

Library Service Associate

Programming Associate

# Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$25.5140	\$2,003.87	\$4,007.74	\$48,092.88
2	\$26.6982	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
3	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
4	\$29.0062	\$2,278.15	\$4,556.30	\$54,675.60
maximum	\$30.6088	\$2,404.02	\$4,808.04	\$57,696.48

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

# Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.6982	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
2	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
3	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
4	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
maximum	\$31.7825	\$2,496.20	\$4,992.40	\$59,908.80

Pay	ban	d 9
-----	-----	-----

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
2	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
3	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
4	\$31.7825	\$2,496.20	\$4,992.40	\$59,908.80
maximum	\$33.5228	\$2,632.88	\$5,265.76	\$63,189.12

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
2	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
3	\$32.0376	\$2,516.23	\$5,032.46	\$60,389.52
4	\$33.5229	\$2,632.89	\$5,265.78	\$63,189.36
maximum	\$35.1207	\$2,758.38	\$5,516.76	\$66,201.12

Information Technology Support Technician

#### Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$32.0378	\$2,516.25	\$5,032.50	\$60,390.00
2	\$33.5231	\$2,632.90	\$5,265.80	\$63,189.60
3	\$35.1209	\$2,758.40	\$5,516.80	\$66,201.60
4	\$36.7943	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
maximum	\$38.2155	\$3,001.45	\$6,002.90	\$72,034.80

No Current Positions

# Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$33.5229	\$2,632.89	\$5,265.78	\$63,189.36
2	\$35.1207	\$2,758.38	\$5,516.76	\$66,201.12
3	\$36.7941	\$2,889.81	\$5,779.62	\$69,355.44
4	\$38.2152	\$3,001.42	\$6,002.84	\$72,034.08
maximum	\$40.3652	\$3,170.28	\$6,340.56	\$76,086.72

Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate CUPE 2669 Economic Increase

Effective: July 01, 2023 to September 19, 2023 3.00%

# Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.1208	\$2,758.39	\$5,516.78	\$66,201.36
2	\$36.7942	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
3	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
4	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
maximum	\$41.9301	\$3,293.19	\$6,586.38	\$79,036.56

Community Librarian

Marketing and Communications Coordinator

Online Brand Coordinator

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

## Pay band 14

Outreach Worker

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$36.7942	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
2	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
3	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
4	\$41.9301	\$3,293.19	\$6,586.38	\$79,036.56
maximum	\$44.2949	\$3,478.92	\$6,957.84	\$83,494.08

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
2	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
3	\$42.2835	\$3,320.95	\$6,641.90	\$79,702.80
4	\$44.2950	\$3,478.93	\$6,957.86	\$83,494.32
maximum	\$46.0162	\$3,614.11	\$7,228.22	\$86,738.64

Effective: September 20, 2023 to December 31, 2023

#### Economic Increase

\$ 0.48 Pay Band 1

\$ - Other Pay Bands

# Pay band 1

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$15.4042	\$1,209.85	\$2,419.70	\$29,036.40
2	\$15.7152	\$1,234.27	\$2,468.54	\$29,622.48
3	\$16.0261	\$1,258.69	\$2,517.38	\$30,208.56
maximum	\$16.3370	\$1,283.11	\$2,566.22	\$30,794.64

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$20.4006	\$1,602.26	\$3,204.52	\$38,454.24
2	\$21.3219	\$1,674.62	\$3,349.24	\$40,190.88
3	\$22.3185	\$1,752.89	\$3,505.78	\$42,069.36
4	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
maximum	\$24.2161	\$1,901.93	\$3,803.86	\$45,646.32

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.3219	\$1,674.62	\$3,349.24	\$40,190.88
2	\$22.3185	\$1,752.89	\$3,505.78	\$42,069.36
3	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
4	\$24.2161	\$1,901.93	\$3,803.86	\$45,646.32
maximum	\$25.5142	\$2,003.89	\$4,007.78	\$48,093.36

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.3183	\$1,752.88	\$3,505.76	\$42,069.12
2	\$23.3335	\$1,832.61	\$3,665.22	\$43,982.64
3	\$24.4048	\$1,916.75	\$3,833.50	\$46,002.00
4	\$25.5141	\$2,003.88	\$4,007.76	\$48,093.12
maximum	\$26.4847	\$2,080.11	\$4,160.22	\$49,922.64

Effective: September 20, 2023 to December 31, 2023

#### **Economic Increase**

\$ 0.48 Pay Band 1

\$ - Other Pay Bands

# Pay band 5

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.3336	\$1,832.62	\$3,665.24	\$43,982.88
2	\$24.4049	\$1,916.76	\$3,833.52	\$46,002.24
3	\$25.5142	\$2,003.89	\$4,007.78	\$48,093.36
4	\$26.4848	\$2,080.12	\$4,160.24	\$49,922.88
maximum	\$27.9391	\$2,194.34	\$4,388.68	\$52,664.16

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

#### Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.4048	\$1,916.75	\$3,833.50	\$46,002.00
2	\$25.5141	\$2,003.88	\$4,007.76	\$48,093.12
3	\$26.6983	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
4	\$27.9390	\$2,194.33	\$4,388.66	\$52,663.92
maximum	\$29.0063	\$2,278.15	\$4,556.30	\$54,675.60

Library Service Associate

**Programming Associate** 

## Pay band 7

Chair	11 a contra	Davi Davia d	0.0	A
Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$25.5140	\$2,003.87	\$4,007.74	\$48,092.88
2	\$26.6982	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
3	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
4	\$29.0062	\$2,278.15	\$4,556.30	\$54,675.60
maximum	\$30.6088	\$2,404.02	\$4,808.04	\$57,696.48

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

# Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.6982	\$2,096.88	\$4,193.76	\$50,325.12
2	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
3	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
4	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
maximum	\$31.7825	\$2,496.20	\$4,992.40	\$59,908.80

Effective: September 20, 2023 to December 31, 2023

#### **Economic Increase**

\$ 0.48 Pay Band 1

\$ - Other Pay Bands

## Pay band 9

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.9389	\$2,194.32	\$4,388.64	\$52,663.68
2	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
3	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
4	\$31.7825	\$2,496.20	\$4,992.40	\$59,908.80
maximum	\$33.5228	\$2,632.88	\$5,265.76	\$63,189.12

**No Current Positions** 

## Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.2362	\$2,296.21	\$4,592.42	\$55,109.04
2	\$30.6087	\$2,404.01	\$4,808.02	\$57,696.24
3	\$32.0376	\$2,516.23	\$5,032.46	\$60,389.52
4	\$33.5229	\$2,632.89	\$5,265.78	\$63,189.36
maximum	\$35.1207	\$2,758.38	\$5,516.76	\$66,201.12

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$32.0378	\$2,516.25	\$5,032.50	\$60,390.00
2	\$33.5231	\$2,632.90	\$5,265.80	\$63,189.60
3	\$35.1209	\$2,758.40	\$5,516.80	\$66,201.60
4	\$36.7943	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
maximum	\$38.2155	\$3,001.45	\$6,002.90	\$72,034.80

No Current Positions

# Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$33.5229	\$2,632.89	\$5,265.78	\$63,189.36
2	\$35.1207	\$2,758.38	\$5,516.76	\$66,201.12
3	\$36.7941	\$2,889.81	\$5,779.62	\$69,355.44
4	\$38.2152	\$3,001.42	\$6,002.84	\$72,034.08
maximum	\$40.3652	\$3,170.28	\$6,340.56	\$76,086.72

Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate

Effective: September 20, 2023 to December 31, 2023

#### **Economic Increase**

\$ 0.48 Pay Band 1

\$ - Other Pay Bands

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.1208	\$2,758.39	\$5,516.78	\$66,201.36
2	\$36.7942	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
3	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
4	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
maximum	\$41.9301	\$3,293.19	\$6,586.38	\$79,036.56

Community Librarian

Marketing and Communications Coordinator

Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian

Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$36.7942	\$2,889.82	\$5,779.64	\$69,355.68
2	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
3	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
4	\$41.9301	\$3,293.19	\$6,586.38	\$79,036.56
maximum	\$44.2949	\$3,478.92	\$6,957.84	\$83,494.08

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$38.5231	\$3,025.60	\$6,051.20	\$72,614.40
2	\$40.3653	\$3,170.29	\$6,340.58	\$76,086.96
3	\$42.2835	\$3,320.95	\$6,641.90	\$79,702.80
4	\$44.2950	\$3,478.93	\$6,957.86	\$83,494.32
maximum	\$46.0162	\$3,614.11	\$7,228.22	\$86,738.64

Effective: January 01, 2024 to September 30, 2024

Pay	band	1
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$15.7123	\$1,234.04	\$2,468.08	\$29,616.96
2	\$16.0295	\$1,258.96	\$2,517.92	\$30,215.04
3	\$16.3466	\$1,283.86	\$2,567.72	\$30,812.64
maximum	\$16.6637	\$1,308.77	\$2,617.54	\$31,410.48

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$20.8086	\$1,634.31	\$3,268.62	\$39,223.44
2	\$21.7483	\$1,708.11	\$3,416.22	\$40,994.64
3	\$22.7649	\$1,787.96	\$3,575.92	\$42,911.04
4	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
maximum	\$24.7004	\$1,939.97	\$3,879.94	\$46,559.28

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.7483	\$1,708.11	\$3,416.22	\$40,994.64
2	\$22.7649	\$1,787.96	\$3,575.92	\$42,911.04
3	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
4	\$24.7004	\$1,939.97	\$3,879.94	\$46,559.28
maximum	\$26.0245	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04

No Current Positions

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.7647	\$1,787.94	\$3,575.88	\$42,910.56
2	\$23.8002	\$1,869.27	\$3,738.54	\$44,862.48
3	\$24.8929	\$1,955.09	\$3,910.18	\$46,922.16
4	\$26.0244	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
maximum	\$27.0144	\$2,121.71	\$4,243.42	\$50,921.04

Effective: January 01, 2024 to September 30, 2024

and	5
	and

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
2	\$24.8930	\$1,955.10	\$3,910.20	\$46,922.40
3	\$26.0245	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
4	\$27.0145	\$2,121.72	\$4,243.44	\$50,921.28
maximum	\$28.4979	\$2,238.23	\$4,476.46	\$53,717.52

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

## Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.8929	\$1,955.09	\$3,910.18	\$46,922.16
2	\$26.0244	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
3	\$27.2323	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
4	\$28.4978	\$2,238.22	\$4,476.44	\$53,717.28
maximum	\$29.5864	\$2,323.72	\$4,647.44	\$55,769.28

Library Service Associate

**Programming Associate** 

#### Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.0243	\$2,043.95	\$4,087.90	\$49,054.80
2	\$27.2322	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
3	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
4	\$29.5863	\$2,323.71	\$4,647.42	\$55,769.04
maximum	\$31.2210	\$2,452.10	\$4,904.20	\$58,850.40

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

# Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.2322	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
2	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
3	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
4	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
maximum	\$32.4182	\$2,546.13	\$5,092.26	\$61,107.12

Effective: January 01, 2024 to September 30, 2024

## Pay band 9

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
2	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
3	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
4	\$32.4182	\$2,546.13	\$5,092.26	\$61,107.12
maximum	\$34.1933	\$2,685.54	\$5,371.08	\$64,452.96

No Current Positions

# Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
2	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
3	\$32.6784	\$2,566.56	\$5,133.12	\$61,597.44
4	\$34.1934	\$2,685.55	\$5,371.10	\$64,453.20
maximum	\$35.8231	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$32.6786	\$2,566.58	\$5,133.16	\$61,597.92
2	\$34.1936	\$2,685.57	\$5,371.14	\$64,453.68
3	\$35.8233	\$2,813.56	\$5,627.12	\$67,525.44
4	\$37.5302	\$2,947.62	\$5,895.24	\$70,742.88
maximum	\$38.9798	\$3,061.47	\$6,122.94	\$73,475.28

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$34.1934	\$2,685.55	\$5,371.10	\$64,453.20
2	\$35.8231	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20
3	\$37.5300	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
4	\$38.9795	\$3,061.45	\$6,122.90	\$73,474.80
maximum	\$41.1725	\$3,233.69	\$6,467.38	\$77,608.56

**Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant** Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate **CUPE 2669 Economic Increase** 2.00%

Effective: January 01, 2024 to September 30, 2024

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.8232	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20
2	\$37.5301	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
3	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
4	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
maximum	\$42.7687	\$3,359.05	\$6,718.10	\$80,617.20

Community Librarian Marketing and Communications Coordinator Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian

Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$37.5301	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
2	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
3	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
4	\$42.7687	\$3,359.05	\$6,718.10	\$80,617.20
maximum	\$45.1808	\$3,548.50	\$7,097.00	\$85,164.00

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
2	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
3	\$43.1292	\$3,387.37	\$6,774.74	\$81,296.88
4	\$45.1809	\$3,548.51	\$7,097.02	\$85,164.24
maximum	\$46.9365	\$3,686.39	\$7,372.78	\$88,473.36

Economic Increase PB 01\_Step 01 to \$18.60

Pay	band	1
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$18.6000	\$1,460.84	\$2,921.68	\$35,060.16
2	\$18.9756	\$1,490.34	\$2,980.68	\$35,768.16
3	\$19.3509	\$1,519.82	\$3,039.64	\$36,475.68
maximum	\$19.7264	\$1,549.31	\$3,098.62	\$37,183.44

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$20.8086	\$1,634.31	\$3,268.62	\$39,223.44
2	\$21.7483	\$1,708.11	\$3,416.22	\$40,994.64
3	\$22.7649	\$1,787.96	\$3,575.92	\$42,911.04
4	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
maximum	\$24.7004	\$1,939.97	\$3,879.94	\$46,559.28

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.7483	\$1,708.11	\$3,416.22	\$40,994.64
2	\$22.7649	\$1,787.96	\$3,575.92	\$42,911.04
3	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
4	\$24.7004	\$1,939.97	\$3,879.94	\$46,559.28
maximum	\$26.0245	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.7647	\$1,787.94	\$3,575.88	\$42,910.56
2	\$23.8002	\$1,869.27	\$3,738.54	\$44,862.48
3	\$24.8929	\$1,955.09	\$3,910.18	\$46,922.16
4	\$26.0244	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
maximum	\$27.0144	\$2,121.71	\$4,243.42	\$50,921.04

Economic Increase PB 01\_Step 01 to \$18.60

Pay	band	5
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.8003	\$1,869.28	\$3,738.56	\$44,862.72
2	\$24.8930	\$1,955.10	\$3,910.20	\$46,922.40
3	\$26.0245	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
4	\$27.0145	\$2,121.72	\$4,243.44	\$50,921.28
maximum	\$28.4979	\$2,238.23	\$4,476.46	\$53,717.52

Acquisitions/Cataloguer
Collections Service Assistant

Marketing and Communications Assistant

#### Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.8929	\$1,955.09	\$3,910.18	\$46,922.16
2	\$26.0244	\$2,043.96	\$4,087.92	\$49,055.04
3	\$27.2323	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
4	\$28.4978	\$2,238.22	\$4,476.44	\$53,717.28
maximum	\$29.5864	\$2,323.72	\$4,647.44	\$55,769.28

Library Service Associate

Programming Associate

## Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.0243	\$2,043.95	\$4,087.90	\$49,054.80
2	\$27.2322	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
3	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
4	\$29.5863	\$2,323.71	\$4,647.42	\$55,769.04
maximum	\$31.2210	\$2,452.10	\$4,904.20	\$58,850.40

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

# Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.2322	\$2,138.82	\$4,277.64	\$51,331.68
2	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
3	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
4	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
maximum	\$32.4182	\$2,546.13	\$5,092.26	\$61,107.12

Effective: October 01, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Economic Increase PB 01\_Step 01 to \$18.60

## Pay band 9

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$28.4977	\$2,238.21	\$4,476.42	\$53,717.04
2	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
3	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
4	\$32.4182	\$2,546.13	\$5,092.26	\$61,107.12
maximum	\$34.1933	\$2,685.54	\$5,371.08	\$64,452.96

No Current Positions

# Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.8209	\$2,342.13	\$4,684.26	\$56,211.12
2	\$31.2209	\$2,452.09	\$4,904.18	\$58,850.16
3	\$32.6784	\$2,566.56	\$5,133.12	\$61,597.44
4	\$34.1934	\$2,685.55	\$5,371.10	\$64,453.20
maximum	\$35.8231	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

•				
Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$32.6786	\$2,566.58	\$5,133.16	\$61,597.92
2	\$34.1936	\$2,685.57	\$5,371.14	\$64,453.68
3	\$35.8233	\$2,813.56	\$5,627.12	\$67,525.44
4	\$37.5302	\$2,947.62	\$5,895.24	\$70,742.88
maximum	\$38.9798	\$3,061.47	\$6,122.94	\$73,475.28

No Current Positions

# Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$34.1934	\$2,685.55	\$5,371.10	\$64,453.20
2	\$35.8231	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20
3	\$37.5300	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
4	\$38.9795	\$3,061.45	\$6,122.90	\$73,474.80
maximum	\$41.1725	\$3,233.69	\$6,467.38	\$77,608.56

Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate Effective: October 01, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Economic Increase PB 01\_Step 01 to \$18.60

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.8232	\$2,813.55	\$5,627.10	\$67,525.20
2	\$37.5301	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
3	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
4	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
maximum	\$42.7687	\$3,359.05	\$6,718.10	\$80,617.20

Community Librarian

Marketing and Communications Coordinator

Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$37.5301	\$2,947.61	\$5,895.22	\$70,742.64
2	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
3	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
4	\$42.7687	\$3,359.05	\$6,718.10	\$80,617.20
maximum	\$45.1808	\$3,548.50	\$7,097.00	\$85,164.00

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$39.2936	\$3,086.12	\$6,172.24	\$74,066.88
2	\$41.1726	\$3,233.70	\$6,467.40	\$77,608.80
3	\$43.1292	\$3,387.37	\$6,774.74	\$81,296.88
4	\$45.1809	\$3,548.51	\$7,097.02	\$85,164.24
maximum	\$46.9365	\$3,686.39	\$7,372.78	\$88,473.36

2.25%

**CUPE 2669** 

Effective: January 01, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Effective. January 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Pay	band	1
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$19.0185	\$1,493.71	\$2,987.42	\$35,849.04
2	\$19.4026	\$1,523.88	\$3,047.76	\$36,573.12
3	\$19.7863	\$1,554.02	\$3,108.04	\$37,296.48
maximum	\$20.1702	\$1,584.17	\$3,168.34	\$38,020.08

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.2768	\$1,671.08	\$3,342.16	\$40,105.92
2	\$22.2376	\$1,746.54	\$3,493.08	\$41,916.96
3	\$23.2771	\$1,828.18	\$3,656.36	\$43,876.32
4	\$24.3358	\$1,911.33	\$3,822.66	\$45,871.92
maximum	\$25.2562	\$1,983.62	\$3,967.24	\$47,606.88

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.2376	\$1,746.54	\$3,493.08	\$41,916.96
2	\$23.2771	\$1,828.18	\$3,656.36	\$43,876.32
3	\$24.3358	\$1,911.33	\$3,822.66	\$45,871.92
4	\$25.2562	\$1,983.62	\$3,967.24	\$47,606.88
maximum	\$26.6101	\$2,089.96	\$4,179.92	\$50,159.04

No Current Positions

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.2769	\$1,828.17	\$3,656.34	\$43,876.08
2	\$24.3357	\$1,911.33	\$3,822.66	\$45,871.92
3	\$25.4530	\$1,999.08	\$3,998.16	\$47,977.92
4	\$26.6099	\$2,089.94	\$4,179.88	\$50,158.56
maximum	\$27.6222	\$2,169.45	\$4,338.90	\$52,066.80

Effective: January 01, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Pay	band	<b> </b> 5
-----	------	------------

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.3358	\$1,911.33	\$3,822.66	\$45,871.92
2	\$25.4531	\$1,999.09	\$3,998.18	\$47,978.16
3	\$26.6101	\$2,089.96	\$4,179.92	\$50,159.04
4	\$27.6223	\$2,169.46	\$4,338.92	\$52,067.04
maximum	\$29.1391	\$2,288.58	\$4,577.16	\$54,925.92

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

## Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$25.4530	\$1,999.08	\$3,998.16	\$47,977.92
2	\$26.6099	\$2,089.94	\$4,179.88	\$50,158.56
3	\$27.8450	\$2,186.95	\$4,373.90	\$52,486.80
4	\$29.1390	\$2,288.58	\$4,577.16	\$54,925.92
maximum	\$30.2521	\$2,376.00	\$4,752.00	\$57,024.00

Library Service Associate

**Programming Associate** 

# Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.6098	\$2,089.93	\$4,179.86	\$50,158.32
2	\$27.8449	\$2,186.94	\$4,373.88	\$52,486.56
3	\$29.1389	\$2,288.57	\$4,577.14	\$54,925.68
4	\$30.2520	\$2,375.99	\$4,751.98	\$57,023.76
maximum	\$31.9235	\$2,507.27	\$5,014.54	\$60,174.48

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

# Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.8449	\$2,186.94	\$4,373.88	\$52,486.56
2	\$29.1389	\$2,288.57	\$4,577.14	\$54,925.68
3	\$30.4919	\$2,394.83	\$4,789.66	\$57,475.92
4	\$31.9234	\$2,507.26	\$5,014.52	\$60,174.24
maximum	\$33.1476	\$2,603.41	\$5,206.82	\$62,481.84

2.25%

Effective: January 01, 2025 to December 31, 2025

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.1389	\$2,288.57	\$4,577.14	\$54,925.68
2	\$30.4919	\$2,394.83	\$4,789.66	\$57,475.92
3	\$31.9234	\$2,507.26	\$5,014.52	\$60,174.24
4	\$33.1476	\$2,603.41	\$5,206.82	\$62,481.84
maximum	\$34.9626	\$2,745.96	\$5,491.92	\$65,903.04

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$30.4919	\$2,394.83	\$4,789.66	\$57,475.92
2	\$31.9234	\$2,507.26	\$5,014.52	\$60,174.24
3	\$33.4137	\$2,624.31	\$5,248.62	\$62,983.44
4	\$34.9628	\$2,745.98	\$5,491.96	\$65,903.52
maximum	\$36.6291	\$2,876.85	\$5,753.70	\$69,044.40

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$33.4139	\$2,624.33	\$5,248.66	\$62,983.92
2	\$34.9630	\$2,745.99	\$5,491.98	\$65,903.76
3	\$36.6293	\$2,876.87	\$5,753.74	\$69,044.88
4	\$38.3746	\$3,013.94	\$6,027.88	\$72,334.56
maximum	\$39.8568	\$3,130.35	\$6,260.70	\$75,128.40

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$34.9628	\$2,745.98	\$5,491.96	\$65,903.52
2	\$36.6291	\$2,876.85	\$5,753.70	\$69,044.40
3	\$38.3744	\$3,013.93	\$6,027.86	\$72,334.32
4	\$39.8565	\$3,130.33	\$6,260.66	\$75,127.92
maximum	\$42.0989	\$3,306.45	\$6,612.90	\$79,354.80

Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate CUPE 2669 Economic Increase

Effective: January 01, 2025 to December 31, 2025

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$36.6292	\$2,876.86	\$5,753.72	\$69,044.64
2	\$38.3745	\$3,013.93	\$6,027.86	\$72,334.32
3	\$40.1777	\$3,155.56	\$6,311.12	\$75,733.44
4	\$42.0990	\$3,306.46	\$6,612.92	\$79,355.04
maximum	\$43.7310	\$3,434.63	\$6,869.26	\$82,431.12

Community Librarian

Marketing and Communications Coordinator

Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian

Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

2.25%

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$38.3745	\$3,013.93	\$6,027.86	\$72,334.32
2	\$40.1777	\$3,155.56	\$6,311.12	\$75,733.44
3	\$42.0990	\$3,306.46	\$6,612.92	\$79,355.04
4	\$43.7310	\$3,434.63	\$6,869.26	\$82,431.12
maximum	\$46.1974	\$3,628.34	\$7,256.68	\$87,080.16

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$40.1777	\$3,155.56	\$6,311.12	\$75,733.44
2	\$42.0990	\$3,306.46	\$6,612.92	\$79,355.04
3	\$44.0996	\$3,463.58	\$6,927.16	\$83,125.92
4	\$46.1975	\$3,628.35	\$7,256.70	\$87,080.40
maximum	\$47.9926	\$3,769.34	\$7,538.68	\$90,464.16

**CUPE 2669** 

Effective: January 01, 2026 to December 31, 2026

2.25%

Pay b	oand	<b>  1</b>
-------	------	------------

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$19.4464	\$1,527.32	\$3,054.64	\$36,655.68
2	\$19.8392	\$1,558.17	\$3,116.34	\$37,396.08
3	\$20.2315	\$1,588.98	\$3,177.96	\$38,135.52
maximum	\$20.6240	\$1,619.81	\$3,239.62	\$38,875.44

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$21.7555	\$1,708.68	\$3,417.36	\$41,008.32
2	\$22.7379	\$1,785.83	\$3,571.66	\$42,859.92
3	\$23.8008	\$1,869.31	\$3,738.62	\$44,863.44
4	\$24.8834	\$1,954.34	\$3,908.68	\$46,904.16
maximum	\$25.8245	\$2,028.26	\$4,056.52	\$48,678.24

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.7379	\$1,785.83	\$3,571.66	\$42,859.92
2	\$23.8008	\$1,869.31	\$3,738.62	\$44,863.44
3	\$24.8834	\$1,954.34	\$3,908.68	\$46,904.16
4	\$25.8245	\$2,028.26	\$4,056.52	\$48,678.24
maximum	\$27.2088	\$2,136.98	\$4,273.96	\$51,287.52

No Current Positions

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.8006	\$1,869.30	\$3,738.60	\$44,863.20
2	\$24.8833	\$1,954.33	\$3,908.66	\$46,903.92
3	\$26.0257	\$2,044.06	\$4,088.12	\$49,057.44
4	\$27.2086	\$2,136.96	\$4,273.92	\$51,287.04
maximum	\$28.2437	\$2,218.26	\$4,436.52	\$53,238.24

Effective: January 01, 2026 to December 31, 2026

Pay band 5	Pay	band	5
------------	-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.8834	\$1,954.34	\$3,908.68	\$46,904.16
2	\$26.0258	\$2,044.07	\$4,088.14	\$49,057.68
3	\$27.2088	\$2,136.98	\$4,273.96	\$51,287.52
4	\$28.2438	\$2,218.27	\$4,436.54	\$53,238.48
maximum	\$29.7947	\$2,340.08	\$4,680.16	\$56,161.92

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

## Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.0257	\$2,044.06	\$4,088.12	\$49,057.44
2	\$27.2086	\$2,136.96	\$4,273.92	\$51,287.04
3	\$28.4715	\$2,236.15	\$4,472.30	\$53,667.60
4	\$29.7946	\$2,340.07	\$4,680.14	\$56,161.68
maximum	\$30.9328	\$2,429.46	\$4,858.92	\$58,307.04

Library Service Associate

**Programming Associate** 

## Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$27.2085	\$2,136.96	\$4,273.92	\$51,287.04
2	\$28.4714	\$2,236.14	\$4,472.28	\$53,667.36
3	\$29.7945	\$2,340.06	\$4,680.12	\$56,161.44
4	\$30.9327	\$2,429.45	\$4,858.90	\$58,306.80
maximum	\$32.6418	\$2,563.69	\$5,127.38	\$61,528.56

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

## Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$28.4714	\$2,236.14	\$4,472.28	\$53,667.36
2	\$29.7945	\$2,340.06	\$4,680.12	\$56,161.44
3	\$31.1780	\$2,448.72	\$4,897.44	\$58,769.28
4	\$32.6417	\$2,563.68	\$5,127.36	\$61,528.32
maximum	\$33.8934	\$2,661.99	\$5,323.98	\$63,887.76

Effective: January 01, 2026 to December 31, 2026

## Pay band 9

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.7945	\$2,340.06	\$4,680.12	\$56,161.44
2	\$31.1780	\$2,448.72	\$4,897.44	\$58,769.28
3	\$32.6417	\$2,563.68	\$5,127.36	\$61,528.32
4	\$33.8934	\$2,661.99	\$5,323.98	\$63,887.76
maximum	\$35.7493	\$2,807.75	\$5,615.50	\$67,386.00

No Current Positions

## Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$31.1780	\$2,448.72	\$4,897.44	\$58,769.28
2	\$32.6417	\$2,563.68	\$5,127.36	\$61,528.32
3	\$34.1655	\$2,683.36	\$5,366.72	\$64,400.64
4	\$35.7495	\$2,807.77	\$5,615.54	\$67,386.48
maximum	\$37.4533	\$2,941.58	\$5,883.16	\$70,597.92

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$34.1657	\$2,683.37	\$5,366.74	\$64,400.88
2	\$35.7497	\$2,807.78	\$5,615.56	\$67,386.72
3	\$37.4535	\$2,941.60	\$5,883.20	\$70,598.40
4	\$39.2380	\$3,081.75	\$6,163.50	\$73,962.00
maximum	\$40.7536	\$3,200.79	\$6,401.58	\$76,818.96

**No Current Positions** 

## Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.7495	\$2,807.77	\$5,615.54	\$67,386.48
2	\$37.4533	\$2,941.58	\$5,883.16	\$70,597.92
3	\$39.2378	\$3,081.74	\$6,163.48	\$73,961.76
4	\$40.7533	\$3,200.76	\$6,401.52	\$76,818.24
maximum	\$43.0461	\$3,380.84	\$6,761.68	\$81,140.16

**Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant** Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate CUPE 2669 Economic Increase

Effective: January 01, 2026 to December 31, 2026

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$37.4534	\$2,941.59	\$5,883.18	\$70,598.16
2	\$39.2379	\$3,081.74	\$6,163.48	\$73,961.76
3	\$41.0817	\$3,226.56	\$6,453.12	\$77,437.44
4	\$43.0462	\$3,380.85	\$6,761.70	\$81,140.40
maximum	\$44.7149	\$3,511.91	\$7,023.82	\$84,285.84

Community Librarian

Marketing and Communications Coordinator

Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian

Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

2.25%

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$39.2379	\$3,081.74	\$6,163.48	\$73,961.76
2	\$41.0817	\$3,226.56	\$6,453.12	\$77,437.44
3	\$43.0462	\$3,380.85	\$6,761.70	\$81,140.40
4	\$44.7149	\$3,511.91	\$7,023.82	\$84,285.84
maximum	\$47.2368	\$3,709.98	\$7,419.96	\$89,039.52

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$41.0817	\$3,226.56	\$6,453.12	\$77,437.44
2	\$43.0462	\$3,380.85	\$6,761.70	\$81,140.40
3	\$45.0918	\$3,541.51	\$7,083.02	\$84,996.24
4	\$47.2369	\$3,709.99	\$7,419.98	\$89,039.76
maximum	\$49.0724	\$3,854.15	\$7,708.30	\$92,499.60

**CUPE 2669** 

Effective: January 01, 2027 to December 31, 2027

Pay	band	1
-----	------	---

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$20.0298	\$1,573.14	\$3,146.28	\$37,755.36
2	\$20.4344	\$1,604.92	\$3,209.84	\$38,518.08
3	\$20.8384	\$1,636.65	\$3,273.30	\$39,279.60
maximum	\$21.2427	\$1,668.40	\$3,336.80	\$40,041.60

Circulation Associate

# Pay band 2

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$22.4082	\$1,759.94	\$3,519.88	\$42,238.56
2	\$23.4200	\$1,839.41	\$3,678.82	\$44,145.84
3	\$24.5148	\$1,925.39	\$3,850.78	\$46,209.36
4	\$25.6299	\$2,012.97	\$4,025.94	\$48,311.28
maximum	\$26.5992	\$2,089.10	\$4,178.20	\$50,138.40

**No Current Positions** 

# Pay band 3

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$23.4200	\$1,839.41	\$3,678.82	\$44,145.84
2	\$24.5148	\$1,925.39	\$3,850.78	\$46,209.36
3	\$25.6299	\$2,012.97	\$4,025.94	\$48,311.28
4	\$26.5992	\$2,089.10	\$4,178.20	\$50,138.40
maximum	\$28.0251	\$2,201.09	\$4,402.18	\$52,826.16

No Current Positions

# Pay band 4

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$24.5146	\$1,925.38	\$3,850.76	\$46,209.12
2	\$25.6298	\$2,012.96	\$4,025.92	\$48,311.04
3	\$26.8065	\$2,105.38	\$4,210.76	\$50,529.12
4	\$28.0249	\$2,201.08	\$4,402.16	\$52,825.92
maximum	\$29.0910	\$2,284.81	\$4,569.62	\$54,835.44

Effective: January 01, 2027 to December 31, 2027

## Pay band 5

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$25.6299	\$2,012.97	\$4,025.94	\$48,311.28
2	\$26.8066	\$2,105.39	\$4,210.78	\$50,529.36
3	\$28.0251	\$2,201.09	\$4,402.18	\$52,826.16
4	\$29.0911	\$2,284.81	\$4,569.62	\$54,835.44
maximum	\$30.6885	\$2,410.27	\$4,820.54	\$57,846.48

Acquisitions/Cataloguer Collections Service Assistant Marketing and Communications Assistant

## Pay band 6

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$26.8065	\$2,105.38	\$4,210.76	\$50,529.12
2	\$28.0249	\$2,201.08	\$4,402.16	\$52,825.92
3	\$29.3256	\$2,303.23	\$4,606.46	\$55,277.52
4	\$30.6884	\$2,410.27	\$4,820.54	\$57,846.48
maximum	\$31.8608	\$2,502.35	\$5,004.70	\$60,056.40

Library Service Associate

Programming Associate

## Pay band 7

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$28.0248	\$2,201.07	\$4,402.14	\$52,825.68
2	\$29.3255	\$2,303.22	\$4,606.44	\$55,277.28
3	\$30.6883	\$2,410.26	\$4,820.52	\$57,846.24
4	\$31.8607	\$2,502.34	\$5,004.68	\$60,056.16
maximum	\$33.6211	\$2,640.60	\$5,281.20	\$63,374.40

Central Service Associate

**Special Collections Assistant** 

## Pay band 8

Step	Hourly	<b>Pay Period</b>	Monthly	Annual
1	\$29.3255	\$2,303.22	\$4,606.44	\$55,277.28
2	\$30.6883	\$2,410.26	\$4,820.52	\$57,846.24
3	\$32.1133	\$2,522.18	\$5,044.36	\$60,532.32
4	\$33.6210	\$2,640.59	\$5,281.18	\$63,374.16
maximum	\$34.9102	\$2,741.85	\$5,483.70	\$65,804.40

Effective: January 01, 2027 to December 31, 2027

## Pay band 9

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$30.6883	\$2,410.26	\$4,820.52	\$57,846.24
2	\$32.1133	\$2,522.18	\$5,044.36	\$60,532.32
3	\$33.6210	\$2,640.59	\$5,281.18	\$63,374.16
4	\$34.9102	\$2,741.85	\$5,483.70	\$65,804.40
maximum	\$36.8218	\$2.891.98	\$5.783.96	\$69.407.52

No Current Positions

## Pay band 10

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$32.1133	\$2,522.18	\$5,044.36	\$60,532.32
2	\$33.6210	\$2,640.59	\$5,281.18	\$63,374.16
3	\$35.1905	\$2,763.86	\$5,527.72	\$66,332.64
4	\$36.8220	\$2,892.00	\$5,784.00	\$69,408.00
maximum	\$38.5769	\$3,029.83	\$6,059.66	\$72,715.92

Information Technology Support Technician

## Pay band 11

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$35.1907	\$2,763.88	\$5,527.76	\$66,333.12
2	\$36.8222	\$2,892.02	\$5,784.04	\$69,408.48
3	\$38.5771	\$3,029.85	\$6,059.70	\$72,716.40
4	\$40.4151	\$3,174.20	\$6,348.40	\$76,180.80
maximum	\$41.9762	\$3,296.81	\$6,593.62	\$79,123.44

**No Current Positions** 

## Pay band 12

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$36.8220	\$2,892.00	\$5,784.00	\$69,408.00
2	\$38.5769	\$3,029.83	\$6,059.66	\$72,715.92
3	\$40.4149	\$3,174.19	\$6,348.38	\$76,180.56
4	\$41.9759	\$3,296.79	\$6,593.58	\$79,122.96
maximum	\$44.3375	\$3,482.27	\$6,964.54	\$83,574.48

**Collections Supervisor Graphic Designer Facility Support Assistant** Neighbourhood Librarian

Reference Librarian Senior Library Service Associate **CUPE 2669 Economic Increase** 3.00%

Effective: January 01, 2027 to December 31, 2027

## Pay band 13

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$38.5770	\$3,029.84	\$6,059.68	\$72,716.16
2	\$40.4150	\$3,174.19	\$6,348.38	\$76,180.56
3	\$42.3142	\$3,323.36	\$6,646.72	\$79,760.64
4	\$44.3376	\$3,482.28	\$6,964.56	\$83,574.72
maximum	\$46.0563	\$3,617.26	\$7,234.52	\$86,814.24

Community Librarian Marketing and Communications Coordinator Online Brand Coordinator

Outreach Worker

Programming Librarian Selection Librarian

Welcoming Initiatives Librarian

## Pay band 14

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$40.4150	\$3,174.19	\$6,348.38	\$76,180.56
2	\$42.3142	\$3,323.36	\$6,646.72	\$79,760.64
3	\$44.3376	\$3,482.28	\$6,964.56	\$83,574.72
4	\$46.0563	\$3,617.26	\$7,234.52	\$86,814.24
maximum	\$48.6539	\$3,821.28	\$7,642.56	\$91,710.72

Information Technology Systems Administrator

Special Collections Librarian

# Pay band 15

Step	Hourly	Pay Period	Monthly	Annual
1	\$42.3142	\$3,323.36	\$6,646.72	\$79,760.64
2	\$44.3376	\$3,482.28	\$6,964.56	\$83,574.72
3	\$46.4446	\$3,647.76	\$7,295.52	\$87,546.24
4	\$48.6540	\$3,821.29	\$7,642.58	\$91,710.96
maximum	\$50.5446	\$3,969.77	\$7,939.54	\$95,274.48

# Appendix A

# **Casual and Circulation Associate Table of Application**

Article or Section	Circulation Associates	Casuals
Preamble	Applies	Applies
Definitions	Applies	Applies
Article 1: Term of Agreement	Applies	Applies
Article 2: Scope	Applies	Applies
Article 3: Recognition	Applies	Applies
Article 4: Resolutions	Applies	Applies
Article 5: Fair Employment Practices	Applies	Applies
Article 6: Seniority	Applies	Does not apply except for 6.1; 6.2 a.; 6.2 b.; 6.2 c.; 6.2 e. only applies with respect to an approved leave of absence; 6.2 f.; 6.2 g.; 6.3; 6.4
Article 7: Appointments	Applies except for 7.4	Does not apply except for 7.2; 7.4
Article 8: Superior Duty	Applies	Does not apply
Article 9: Hours of Work	Does not apply	Does not apply except for 9.2; 9.6; 9.8; see Appendix B – MOA: Casual Employee Hired Prior to December 5, 1990
Article 10: Hours of Work for Circulation Associates	Applies	Does not apply
Article 11: Vacations	Does not apply except for 11.6	Does not apply except for 11.6
Article 12: Public Holidays	Does not apply except for 12.6	Does not apply
Article 13: Sick Leave	Does not apply	Does not apply except for 13.6
Article 14:Circulation Associate Sick Leave	Applies	Does not apply
Article 15: Maternity, Adoption, and Parental Leave  Article 16: Compassionate	Does not apply; Circulation Associates receive Maternity, Adoption, and Parental Leave according to the Saskatchewan Employment Act Applies	Does not apply; Casuals receive Maternity, Adoption, and Parental Leave according to the Saskatchewan Employment Act  Does not apply
Leave and Bereavement Leave		

Article 17: Victims of Interpersonal Violence Leave	Applies	Applies
Article 18: Jury and Witness Duty	Applies	Applies
Article 19: Employee Development	Applies except for 19.3 for which service shall accumulate from March 25, 2020.	Does not apply
Article <b>20</b> : Leave Without Pay	Applies	Applies
Article 21: Union Leave – Employer Paid	Applies	Does not apply
Article 2 <b>2</b> : Union Leave – Unpaid	Applies	Does not apply
Article 23: Self-funded Leave	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 24: Technological Change	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 25: Occupational Health and Safety	Applies	Applies
Article 26: Violence and Harassment	Applies	Applies
Article 27: Grievance Procedure	Applies	Applies
Article 28: Discipline	Applies	Applies
Article 29: Resignations and Terminations for Permanent and Temporary Employees	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article <b>30</b> : Layoff for Permanent and Temporary Employees	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 31: Resignations and Terminations for Circulation Associates	Applies	Does not apply
Article 32: Layoff for Circulation Associates	Applies	Does not apply
Article 33: Superannuation and Retirement	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 34: Group Life Insurance	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 35: Car Allowance	Applies	Applies
Article 36: Dental and Medical/Vision Care Plan	Does not apply	Does not apply
Article 37: Wages	Applies	Applies
Wage Tables	Applies	Applies

### **MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT**

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### And

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

**Re: Extension Indigenous Hiring** 

The Union and the Employer recognize the importance of a representative workforce which includes First Nation, Métis, and/or Inuit people; and

In recognition of the importance of a representative workforce, the Union and the Employer have agreed to changes to Article 7.2(b) of the Collective Agreement to provide applicants with First Nations, Métis, and/or Inuit heritage with the opportunity for appointment to certain designated positions.

The Union and the Employer, therefore, agree to the following:

- 1. The following designated positions will be distributed as evenly as possible across SPL locations.
  - a. Reference Librarian (1 position)
  - b. Neighbourhood Librarian (2 positions)
  - c. Senior Library Service Associate (2 positions)
  - d. Library Service Associate (12 part-time positions)
  - e. Central Service Associate (4 part-time positions and 1 full-time position)
  - f. Programming Associate (2 part-time positions)
- 2. The order in which an applicant to a designated position shall be considered shall be the following:
  - a. First, qualified internal self-declared First Nation, Métis, and/or Inuit employees,
  - b. Next, internal self-declared First Nation, Métis, and/or Inuit employees who qualify for the position as an underfill; and
  - c. Next, qualified external applicants who self-declare First Nation. Metis and/or Inuit heritage.
- 3. Where the process in Point 2 has not resulted in the appointment of a qualified

external applicant, the designated position will be reposted according to the terms of Article 7.2(b) of the collective agreement.

- 4. The parties agree that the Union will be provided with an annual report indicating the location of each of the designated positions and whether the position is encumbered or vacant.
- 5. The parties agree that this Memorandum of Agreement shall apply for a minimum of one year. After one year, either party may provide sixty (60) days' notice of their desire to revisit its terms. This MOA expires upon the signing of the new Collective Agreement for the period beginning July 1, 2023.
- 6. Extension to MOA: Parties have agreed to an extension of MOA which will expire on December 31, 2027.

Signed this 21 day of Februan	, 2025.
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
President  Mhaus  Executive	Beth Côté, Acting Director of Libraries and CEO  Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### Memorandum of Agreement

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEESLOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### And

### SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

(hereinafter referred to as "SPL")

Re: Job Sharing Agreement

The Union and SPL agree there may be instances where employees may wish to job-share a position; and

The Union and SPL also agree that arrangements for job-sharing may be unique in each instance;

The Union and SPL agree as follows:

- 1. Where a full-time employee would like to consider a job sharing arrangement the employee shall notify the applicable Manager(s) and the Union.
- 2. The proposed job-sharing arrangement shall be provided to the Director of Libraries and CEO for approval.
- 3. If approved, one-half of the job to be shared will be posted pursuant to Article 7.1.
- 4. The Union and SPL shall meet with the successful job-share applicant and the incumbent to ensure they are fully informed of the consequences of a job-sharing arrangement.
- 5. The Union and SPL will negotiate the terms of the job-sharing arrangement including, but not limited to, the division of duties, the application of the relevant terms of the collective agreement, and the terms of the dissolution of the arrangement.

- 6. Should the two employees agree to proceed with a job-sharing arrangement, the successful job-share applicant will be offered the shared half of the position.
- 7. Should the job-sharing arrangement be approved by the Director of Libraries and CEO, the arrangement may be terminated by the Director of Libraries and CEO upon ninety (90) days' notice.

Signed this 22nd day of March, 2021	
SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD	CUPE LOCAL NO. 2669
Carl Cader	Mendell Mils
SPL	CUPE
FOR STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE P	Sale Pomeray
SPL	CUPF (/

# LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING between

# The Saskatoon Public Library Board and The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669

Re: Job Evaluation (2002)

The parties hereto commit to adopting the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local No. 59 joint Job Evaluation Plan (hereinafter referred to as the "Plan") as soon as possible following the completion of the Plan. All jobs represented by CUPE Local 2669 at the Saskatoon Public Library shall be processed through the Plan (i.e. Saskatoon Public Library and CUPE Local 2669 will use the Plan to conduct internal Job Evaluation at Saskatoon Public Library. Utilizing the Plan does not result in adoption of the CUPE Local 59 wage line). Article 16 shall be suspended effective the date of signing of this Agreement, and will be voided upon implementation of the Plan. [This is a reference to a past article number that is no longer accurate.] The parties are committed to genderneutral job evaluation to achieve internal equity among Union jobs with respect to equal pay for work of equal value in the Saskatoon Public Library.

The Saskatoon Public Library Board commits to set aside funding \$92,000 which is approximately 2% of the bargaining unit payroll for the year 2001. The parties agree that this will be expended to fund negotiated bargaining unit salary adjustments that result from the implementation of the Plan.

Any employees in a classification which decreases in pay grade as a result of job evaluation will continue to receive general economic increases negotiated, for as long as they continue to hold that position or for the first three years after the implementation of the job evaluation plan, whichever occurs first. After three years, no general economic increases are to be applied to downward classification decisions. No classification reviews or appeals shall be dealt with during the job evaluation plan development through to the implementation date of the new Plan for the Saskatoon Public Library and CUPE 2669. All outstanding grievances relating to job classification are considered withdrawn and the Union agrees to not file any further grievances related to classification review.

The general terms of the Job Evaluation are as follows:

a) The parties will establish a six member Joint Job Evaluation Steering Committee (hereinafter referred to as "the Committee") made up of equal representation from the Employer and the Union. Committee members shall suffer no loss of pay, or benefits of the Collective Agreement, for attendance at meetings and work time allocated by the Committee for related work.

- b) The Committee will operate on the basis of consensus and refer any disagreements back to their principals.
- c) If the Committee accepts that there is a problem, it shall have the authority to modify the Plan as needed.
- d) The Committee will oversee evaluation and rating of all jobs using the Plan.
- e) Job evaluation will be completed as soon as possible following the completion of the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local No. 59 Joint Evaluation Plan.
- f) Salary adjustments, as a result of implementing the Plan, shall be effective midnight March 31, 2004. The \$92,000 to be expended for salary adjustments will be implemented upon completion of all job evaluations and in accordance with instructions of the Union.
- g) All existing jobs within the classifications of Schedule 1, and any new positions will be processed through the Job Evaluation Plan.
- h) The Committee shall deal with appeals arising out of Job Evaluation Assessments by following the process outlined for appeals established by the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local 59 Job Evaluation Plan.
- i) Any additional salary adjustments are subject to negotiation between the parties during the collective bargaining following March 31, 2004.

Signed this 26th day of November, 2002	
On Behalf of The Saskatoon Public Library Board	On Behalf of C.U.P.E. Local No. 2669
Schlechto	May Svanchull
Im Jugar	Aufer Gleomeon
fomer & lea	
· <i>V</i> .	
	•

### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

### between

# The Saskatoon Public Library Board and The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669

### Re: Job Evaluation (2007)

- This Letter of Understanding is further to the Letter of Understanding between the parties, relating to Job Evaluation, dated November 26, 2002.
- Whereas the parties have adopted a joint Job Evaluation Plan (hereinafter referred to as the "Plan"); and,
- Whereas all jobs represented by CUPE Local 2669 have been processed through the Plan, and the Joint Job Evaluation Committee has established a fifteen pay band structure; and,
- Whereas the Employer has set aside funding totalling \$92,000 in accordance with the Letter of Understanding, dated November 26, 2002, to fund retroactive salary adjustments that result from implementation of the Plan; and,
- Whereas implementation of the Plan would increase the current annual cost of salaries, by up to \$112,604 (based on 2006 salary costs);

The Union and the Employer agree to the following:

- 1. The Employer will implement the Plan and provide funding, based on 2006 salaries, to a maximum of \$112,604, which sum will be pro-rated for a partial year (ie.2007). The Plan shall be deemed to be implemented on March 16, 2007, but resulting salary adjustments will not be paid until ratification of the 2007-2010 Collective Agreement. The salary adjustments, referred to in this paragraph, will only apply and be paid to staff actually employed by the Employer on March 16, 2007.
- 2. The \$92,000 referenced in the Letter of Understanding dated November 26, 2002, will be expended for retroactive salary adjustments, from midnight March 31, 2004 to midnight March 15, 2007, in accordance with instructions from the Union.
- 3. Article 16 [this reference is to a former article that is no longer accurate] is voided and will no longer form part of the Collective Agreement.
- 4. This Letter of Understanding includes the 'Terms of Reference for the Joint Job Evaluation

Plan' between the parties, dated December 2003 (attached).

Signed this 2 day of Soch , 2007.

On Behalf of On Behalf of C.U.P.E. Log

### TERMS OF REFERENCE

#### between

# The Saskatoon Public Library Board and The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669

Re: Joint Job Evaluation Plan - Terms of Reference (2003)

### 1. Policy Framework

The Saskatoon Public Library Board (the Employer) and the Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669 (the Union) are committed to equity, fairness and an investment in employees. This guideline document provides an overall policy framework to achieve equal pay for work of equal value. The objective of this process is to achieve internal equity through a method that respects pay equity principles.

The parties are committed to gender neutral job evaluation to achieve internal equity among Union jobs with respect to equal pay for work of equal value in the Saskatoon Public Library, within the following framework:

- That a process for implementation include:
  - A joint gender-neutral job evaluation Plan consistent with the principles of equal pay for work of equal value.
  - A joint Employer-employee representative committee.
  - Separate funding for salary adjustments resulting from implementation of the job evaluation Letter of Understanding signed November 26<sup>th</sup>, 2002 of the Collective Agreement ratified on November 27, 2002.
- There shall be no loss or reduction of employment as a result of this job evaluation process.
- The Employer will provide required consultant services at no cost to the Plan.
- When the Plan is complete, salary adjustments will be implemented as per the Union's instructions (as per article f) in the Job Evaluation Letter of Understanding signed November 26<sup>th</sup>, 2002).
- The parties shall ensure the integrity of the process by maintaining confidentiality during and after the project.

### 2. Goals

The goals of the joint, gender-neutral job evaluation process are as follows:

- a) To rectify any potential inequalities based on the principle of equal pay for work of equal value as it applies to the jobs within CUPE Local 2669.
- b) To ensure that any outcomes of an equal pay for work of equal value compensation structure are maintained.
- c) To establish the essential components of a process for implementation.
- d) To establish a joint job evaluation maintenance process.
- e) To revise job descriptions, where required, as a result of this process.

### 3. Equal Value Objectives

Gender-neutral job evaluation impacting CUPE 2669 positions within the Saskatoon Public Library will be conducted on the basis of equal pay for work of equal value principles that shall be consistent with the objective of achieving internal equity.

- a) "Equal pay for work of equal value" is a principle whereby jobs which are of the same value should be paid the same, even if those jobs are much different from one another. All jobs in an organization are measured against a common set of criteria to identify their relative worth in the organization. The criteria are as follows: skill, effort, responsibility and working conditions. Jobs, which are deemed of equal or comparable value, shall be paid the same rates of pay regardless of job title.
  - "Equal pay for work of equal value" is deemed to be achieved when the Employer adjusts its compensation practices so that all employees are assigned to a schedule of pay with the same maximum hourly rate of pay as other employees performing work of equal or comparable value.
- b) "Internal equity" applies the principle of equal pay for work of equal value to all jobs (both male and female jobs) within CUPE Local 2669 positions. Once the principle of equal pay for work of equal value has been applied to CUPE Local 2669's compensation structure, all jobs are paid fairly as compared to one to another, thereby achieving the goal of internal equity.

Regression analysis will serve as a tool to compensate the process to determine the appropriate value of the jobs.

### 4. Timelines for Implementation

The parties undertake to complete each stage of implementation in good faith, on the basis of fair and reasonable timelines. The need to create a properly

developed and comprehensive plan of job evaluation that addresses both the immediate and long-term needs of the parties is paramount.

- Salary adjustments as a result of implementing the Plan shall be effective midnight March 31, 2004. The \$92,000 to be expended for salary adjustments will be implemented upon completion of all job evaluations and in accordance with instructions of the Union.
- Any additional salary adjustments are subject to negotiation between the parties during collective bargaining following March 31, 2004.
- 5. Joint Job Evaluation Steering Committee (hereinafter called the Committee)

The parties will establish a six member Joint Job Evaluation Steering Committee made up of equal representation from the Employer and the Union. Committee members shall suffer no loss of pay or benefits of the Collective Agreement for attendance at meetings and work time allocated by the Committee for related work.

Either party to the agreement may contact consultants to assist its representatives of the Committee. Any such consultant shall not be entitled to vote and shall not be considered to be a member of the Committee.

The Committee will include representation from a cross-section of job classes and will be gender balanced to the extent possible. The Employer will appoint Employer representatives. The Union will appoint Union representatives.

To ensure consistency in implementing equal pay for work of equal value principles, membership on the Committee shall not vary, wherever reasonably possible and practical. But if a member leaves the Committee for any reason, the respective party may appoint an appropriate replacement member. Members of the Committee shall be consistent wherever possible with minimal use of alternatives, but shall not be unduly restrictive.

The Committee shall meet as necessary at a mutually agreed upon time and place. For the purpose of conducting business, a quorum will be a minimum of two Employer representatives and two Union representatives.

The Committee will appoint a chairperson on a rotating basis. The chairperson will prepare the agenda and chair the meeting.

The decisions of the Committee will be unanimous for evaluations and on any policy or overall matter relating to the development and implementation of the Plan. Should the Committee fail to reach unanimity, it will request the assistance of a mutually agreed upon facilitator in order to reach a decision. The facilitator will be cost-shared between the parties. Should the Committee still fail to reach

a unanimous decision, the issue(s) will be referred back to the principals for assistance in resolution. Should this fail, the process shall be abandoned. The decision for abandonment rests with the principals. Evaluation decisions of the Committee will be final and binding upon the parties.

### 6. Committee Responsibilities

The Committee shall oversee the development and implementation of the Joint Job Evaluation Plan. The parties commit to adopting the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local 59 Joint Job Evaluation Plan as soon as possible following the completion of that Plan. The Committee has the following responsibilities.

- Develop a disclosure and communication strategy regarding the job evaluation program.
- Ensure training as required for the Committee.
- If the Committee accepts and agrees that there is a problem, it shall have the authority to modify the Plan as needed.
- Determine the data that will be used to develop a representative wage line through regression analysis.
- Review and use the regression analysis results.
- Finalize banding of the point ranges.
- Record rating results and rational for all decisions and maintain recorded documentation for future reference.
- Maintain integrity of the Plan.

### 7. Administrative Support Services

The Employer will provide administrative support services to the Committee, as needed. The person(s) performing these functions shall not be a member of the Committee. These services shall be under the direction of the chairperson(s) and shall include:

- the distribution of all Committee correspondence to the Committee chairperson(s)
- meeting coordination, preparation and distribution of meeting agendas
- the preparation and distribution of minutes and Committee documents
- data entry, as directed, from the questionnaires and evaluation results.

The administrative support person will have no voice or decision-making role, but will attend meetings as required.

### 8. Job Evaluation Procedures

The following general procedures shall be used to evaluate jobs:

a. All incumbents shall complete the Job Summary and the Job Evaluation

Questionnaire (JEQ). Both will be forwarded to the manager. The manager's comments will be documented and included as part of the Job Evaluation Questionnaire. The manager may not unilaterally alter any of the incumbent's responses. The completed Summary and Questionnaire will be submitted to the Committee. The employee may request a copy of the completed Summary.

- b. Where further information is required, the Committee will determine how the information should be obtained. Additional information shall be gathered in such a manner as to minimize any disruption to the workplace.
- c. The Committee shall rate the position using all the information gathered. The Plan evaluates at minimum skill, effort, responsibility and working conditions. Each factor is divided into sub-factors to provide a standard against which each job is evaluated to determine its relative worth.
- 9. Job Ratings Serve To:
  - a. Group jobs have relatively similar point values (commonly referred to as banding).
  - b. Provide a basis upon which wage rate relationships between jobs are established.
  - c. Measure changes in job content.
- 10. Application of the Plan

The following general rules shall apply:

- a. It is job content and not incumbent performance that is being evaluated.
- b. Jobs are evaluated without regard to existing wage rates.
- c. Jobs are placed at an appropriate degree level in each sub-factor by comparing the specific requirements of the job to the sub-factor definition and the description of each degree level: no interpolation of degrees (i.e. midpoints) is permitted.
- d. The job analysis and rating of each job shall be relative to and consistent with the Job Evaluation Questionnaire responses and rating of all other jobs under the Plan:
  - i. Ratings shall include 'sore-thumbing' for consistency.
  - ii. The sub-factors must have an impact on all jobs being evaluated.

iii. Committee members shall not evaluate their own job or the job of any family.

## 11. Appeals Process

- a. Only employees or groups of employees who have completed a Job Evaluation Questionnaire will be eligible to appeal the decisions of the Committee.
- b. The incumbent may, within 30 calendar days of receiving the evaluation results, request reconsideration using the appropriate form. New supporting evidence must be provided for the appeal to be heard. The request must be submitted to the Committee stating the reasons for disagreement with specific degree level(s), and providing examples. Positions under appeal shall be completely open to review within the terms of the Job Evaluation Plan.
- c. If an employee had been part of a group that submitted a Group Job Evaluation Questionnaire, the rating decision is binding on all positions represented. Any appeal of such a rating must be submitted as a group and will require a simple majority of all the employees who signed the original JEQ.
- d. Employees cannot appeal the salary or schedule or placement in the salary schedule. They cannot request a review of another job.
- e. Written appeals shall be made to the Committee. The Committee will verify the information received and, where further information is required, will determine how the information should be obtained. Additional information shall be fathered in such a manner as to minimize any disruption to the workplace. The incumbent may request to make a presentation before the Committee. However, the Committee shall determine whether a presentation will be heard. In the case where the Committee is tied, the appellant will be allowed to proceed with the presentation.
- f. The decisions of the Committee will be unanimous. Note: refer to #5 The Committee shall inform the incumbent and the manager of its decision using the appropriate form. Decisions shall be final and binding on all parties.
- g. Article 27 of the Collective Agreement (Grievance Procedure does not apply to the Job Evaluation process).
- 12. Procedures for Evaluating Changed Jobs

Whenever the incumbent or Employer identifies that the duties, responsibilities, educational or experience qualifications of the existing position have changed:

- a. The incumbent or Employer may request a job evaluation review by completing and submitting the appropriate form to the Committee.
- b. The Committee shall meet to rate each sub-factor, establish an appropriate evaluation and advise the incumbent and manager of the results of the re-evaluation using the appropriate form. The rating of the job shall determine the pay grade for the job.
- c. Where the incumbent disagrees with the Committee's decision, an appeal may be filed as per outlined appeals process.
- d. No reviews of changes to jobs will be considered until six (6) months following the implementation of this Plan.

### 13. Procedures for Evaluating New Positions

When the Employers establishes a new position of a nature not already classified, the following shall apply:

- a. The Employer shall complete an interim Job Evaluation Questionnaire.
- b. The Committee shall meet and establish a temporary pay grade for the job, based on the draft Job Evaluation Questionnaire.
- c. The job shall be posted as 'Under Review' and the appointee shall be paid the temporary grade.
- d. Twelve (12) months after appointment, the incumbent and manager shall complete a JEQ, which shall be submitted to the Committee. The Committee will evaluate the position as per the procedures outlined above. The pay grade shall be assigned to the position effective 12 months after the appointment of the incumbent. In the event that the pay rate of the job decreases as a result of the twelve-month review, the incumbent shall continue to receive general economic increases negotiated, for as long as they continue to that position or for the first three years after the date of the Committee's final decision, whichever occurs first.

### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

### between

# The Saskatoon Public Library Board and The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669

Re: Joint Job Evaluation Plan (2014)

The Employer and Union have established a Joint Job Evaluation Plan and Terms of Reference (December 2003) which will continue to be used to rate all new and changed jobs. The parties are committed to the principle of pay equity.

The parties recognize the value, objectives and principles as set out in the December 2003 Joint Job Evaluation Plan. In order to improve the effectiveness, efficiency, and integrity of the plan and process the Joint Job Evaluation Committee will update the Terms of Reference accordingly.

This Letter of Understanding shall be effective for the term of the current collective bargaining agreement between the parties.

On behalf of The Saskatoon Public Library Board

On behalf of C.U.P.E. Local No. 2669

RHGISLGR

### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

### between

# The Saskatoon Public Library Board and The Canadian Union of Public Employees Local No. 2669

Re: Pay Equity (2002)

The parties are committed to the concept of pay equity that is based on the principle of equal pay for work of equal value.

Considering the Board's affiliation with the City of Saskatoon, and that there are not enough male comparators within the Saskatoon Public Library to generate an appropriate comparison, the parties agree to a joint study of pay equity disparities between the Saskatoon Public Library and the City of Saskatoon, in the following manner:

The study will compare pay equity disparities between CUPE Local No 59 and CUPE Local 2669. This will occur as soon as possible following the completion and implementation of the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local No. 59 joint Job Evaluation Plan, and the processing of CUPE Local No. 2669 classifications through the City of Saskatoon and CUPE Local No. 59 joint Job Evaluation Plan (as per Job Evaluation Letter of Understanding, dated November 26, 2002). Any salary adjustments are subject to negotiation between the parties during collective bargaining following March 31, 2004.

Signed this 26th day of November, 2002	
On Behalf of The Saskatoon Public Library Board	On Behalf of C.U.P.E. Local No. 2669
Jon Juzor Jame & lea	- Guerneau

### **MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT**

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

#### and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Working From Home (Telework)

Whereas the parties recognize that the Saskatoon Public Library (SPL) is a community organization whose purpose includes providing services to the public that are inspired by and meet the needs of the community and,

Whereas the parties recognize the potential for certain positions or parts of job duties that could be conducted remotely or outside SPL locations as part of a telework MOA program that focuses on situations where the parties can be flexible on work location. It is understood that:

- Such arrangements will be evaluated by the employer on a case-by case basis;
- Telework arrangements may be appropriate for some employees, positions, or tasks but not others:
- Telework arrangements are not intended to establish remote work as a
  permanent solution but rather to explore its feasibility and effectiveness for
  unusual situations that may arise;
- Telework arrangements or access to telework is not a guaranteed entitlement;
- Telework arrangements may include all or part of an employee's scheduled hours on a given day.

The parties agree to the following:

An employee or manager may initiate a telework arrangement request as a part of this MOA. Telework arrangements are intended to serve the interests of both the organization and the employee. While we strive to accommodate such arrangements where feasible and beneficial, employees and managers will plan arrangements according to a Telework Procedure that will be developed by the employer.

To be eligible for Telework consideration, an employee must:

- Be a permanent, job share or temporary employee;
- Work in a position where telework arrangements are feasible, as determined by the employer:

- Have no ongoing performance or attendance issues as determined by the employer;
- Have a proposed telework location that is within 100 kilometers of the boundaries of Saskatoon; and,
- Have approval to engage in telework prior to the telework beginning.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement starting July 1, 2023. Both parties retain the option to renegotiate terms as mutually decided.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

For CUPE Local 2669

For Saskatoon Public Library

Beth Côté, Director, Public Services

Amanda Kondra, Director, Human
Resources

### MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

#### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Frances Morrison Central Library Safety and Security Measures

Whereas the Union and the Employer recognize that the Saskatoon Public Library (SPL) is a community organization whose purpose includes providing services to the public that are inspired by and meet the needs of the community and, the Parties recognize that cooperation in promoting and improving workplace practices provides employees with a safe and healthy environment.

The Union, the Employer, and the employees shall work together to provide a safe and healthy work environment, including, but not limited to, adequate training, equipment, and procedures to ensure the well-being of employees.

The Parties agree to the following measures for the remainder of the period of time when public library operations are delivered in the Frances Morrison Central Library (FMCL) facility.

- 1. As per Article 25 the Employer shall develop a minimum staffing plan with contingencies in place to address safety and security concerns when the following areas are open to the public:
  - a) The FMCL Local History area such that no employee is required to work alone in the enclosed Local History Room space.
  - b) The FMCL Children's area such that no employee is required to work alone in the enclosed FMCL Children's area, with the exception of the innovation lab or story room.
  - c) The FMCL Fine Arts area such that no employee is required to work alone in the enclosed Fine Arts area.
- 2. The Employer shall create a building-wide check-in system which will include a review of the communication challenges of the various floors and spaces. The Employer, in collaboration with the Safety Advisory Committee (as outlined in the

MOA Re: Safety and Security Measures), will create a system for better communication throughout the FMCL building in urgent or emergency situations.

- 3. Wherever possible, employees will leave the FMCL building together.
- 4. The Employer will develop a plan where contracted guards perform visual building perimeter sweeps at closing and, upon employee request, escort employees to their transportation on SPL property, or to the edge of SPL property.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement or when FMCL is no longer open to the public for library services, whichever comes first.

This MOA will be reviewed and discussed at the next round of bargaining. Both parties retain the option to renegotiate terms as mutually decided.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 21 day of Februa	202 5
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
Wilhami	Beth Côté, Director, Public Services
	Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### **MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING**

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

and

SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Safety and Security Measures

Whereas the Union and the Employer recognize that the Saskatoon Public Library (SPL) is a community organization whose purpose includes providing services to the public that are inspired by and meet the needs of the community and,

The Parties recognize that cooperation in promoting and improving workplace practices provides employees with a safe and healthy environment. The Union, the Employer, and the employees shall work together to provide a safe and healthy work environment, including, but not limited to, adequate training, equipment, and procedures to ensure the well-being of employees.

The Employer has implemented many safety and security measures including those that the Union and Employer discussed to date. We are committed to continued collaboration and communication with the Union on initiatives and strategies that are focused on protecting the safety and wellbeing of employees.

The Parties agree to the following:

- The creation of a Safety Advisory Committee comprised of three current OHC Union members and three Employer representatives who will meet monthly until the conclusion of the Collective Agreement. The terms of reference for the committee shall be negotiated and approved by the Parties.
- 2. The Employer will provide all employees with communication devices while working as required for safety and security as outlined in Article 25. Training will be provided to employees on all communication devices and procedures.

- 3. An ongoing review of safety and security measures will be done with employees who work in the areas where measures are in effect.
- 4. The Employer will offer training for the Union executive on trauma informed leadership or equivalent course.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement. This MOA will be reviewed and discussed at the next round of bargaining.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 21 day of Feb	pruary, 2025
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
All	Folia (SD)
20601	Beth Cré, Director, Public Services
Mhais	1 and 11
6	A <del>manda Kondra, Di</del> rector, Human
	Resources

### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Occupational Health and Safety Commitment

During the negotiations of the renewal of the 2023–2027 Collective Agreement, the Employer and the CUPE 2669 discussed occupational health and safety concerns.

Safety is important to everyone who works at Saskatoon Public Library (SPL). The parties have a mutual interest in the safety and well-being of employees and acknowledge that there is value in collaborating on measures that address these issues. To this end, the parties have worked toward improvements in the following areas of concern:

- Employee and public spaces, including sightlines, space design, buildings, and furniture,
- Safely leaving workplaces,
- · Communication procedures and devices for employees,
- · Proximity to other people while working, and
- · Emergency measures.

In order to address a number of mutually agreed upon safety concerns, the Employer has implemented a number of measures as of the date of this LOU, including:

- Planning Local History room changes,
- Deploying smartphones for all public service employees working at a desk or other service point at FMCL,
- Ensuring guards know that they must do a visual sweep of SPL property upon request of employees leaving work,
- Adding check-in processes for areas of FMCL where employees may be working without others' knowledge, including the basement and mezzanine levels,
- Working on scheduling and workflow changes for FMCL to ensure that two
  employees are always present in the Children's Area of FMCL when the area is
  open to the public.
- Conducting a third-party safety audit in November 2024,
- Committing to continued collaboration and communication with the Union on initiatives and of strategies that are the focused on protecting the safety and wellbeing of employees through the creation of a Safety Advisory Committee.

employees at this link [SPL Link Here	updates to safety and security measures with e].
Dated this theday	February 5 of <del>November,</del> 2024.
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
7/4/1/	Beth Côté, Director, Public
Milharis	Senices
	Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### **MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT**

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

And

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: External Salary Review

The Parties agree to the following:

SPL will engage in an external salary review to determine salary equity across the public library sector and civic indoor worker roles as identified by the third party. Any change in wages for employees will be as negotiated between the parties. Results affecting employees will be shared with the Union for negotiation.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement. This MOA will be reviewed and discussed at the next round of bargaining beginning January 1, 2028. Both parties retain the option to renegotiate terms as mutually decided.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 21 day of February	<u> 214</u> , 202 <b>5</b> .
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
Hall	Eshill
Mhans	Beth Gôté, Dir lic Services
701	Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### **MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT**

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

#### and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Circulation Associate Vacation Time

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to the addition of Circulation Associates to Article 11.2 Vacation Entitlement to give them the option to opt in to banking vacation time rather than receiving The Saskatchewan Employment Act mandated vacation pay paid out.

Notwithstanding the Collective Agreement between the Parties;

SPL and the Union agree to the following:

### Article 11.2 Vacation Entitlement

- a. Professional Librarians are entitled to four (4) weeks' vacation after one (1) year accumulated service. All other employees, including Circulation Associates, are entitled to three (3) weeks' vacation after one (1) year accumulated service.
- b. All other staff, including Circulation Associates, are entitled to four (4) weeks' vacation after three (3) years' accumulated service.
- c. All staff, including Circulation Associates, are entitled to five (5) weeks' vacation after fifteen (15) years accumulated service.
- d. All staff, including Circulation Associates, are entitled to six (6) weeks' vacation after twenty-four (24) years accumulated service.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement which ends December 31, 2027.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any

other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 21 day of February	_, 202\$
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
Mart	Polici
In Chain	Be Côté, Director, Public Services
	Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### **LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING**

#### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

Re: Circulation Associate Paid Sick Leave

The Parties have agreed to the following in respect to the addition of paid sick leave for Circulation Associates agreed to in the 2023-2027 Collective Agreement:

- 1. The current MOA Re: Circulation Associate Sick Leave (2019) will no longer be in effect as of the signing of the Collective Agreement.
- 2. For all Circulation Associates employed with SPL as of the date of signing the Collective Agreement,
  - Any accumulated sick leave hours in Circulation Associate banks will be rolled over to the employees' new sick bank to a maximum of 30 days' worth of hours (based on Article 10.1), and
  - b. Any Circulation Associate banks that are below 3.75 days will be credited sick leave hours to ensure a minimum of 3.75 days in their bank.
- 3. All Circulation Associates will begin to accrue sick time as per the new Article 14 as of the signing of this agreement.
- 4. Circulation Associates that have been with SPL more than 3 months at the signing of this agreement may begin to use any sick leave hours they have in their bank immediately.
- 5. Sick days are accrued with time worked and days are recognized as 7.25 hours as in Article 10.1 The Normal Work Week.

# Dated this 21 day of February, 2025

For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
- that	Bould
	Beth Côté, Director, Public
111 0/	Services
MIlais	/ Venova.
- 1	Amanda Kondra, Director,
	Human Pasources

### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### and

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

### Re: Circulation Associate Personal, Religious or Cultural Holidays

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to ensure that Circulation Associates receive their entitled to time off in the spirit of Article 12.6 Personal, Religious or Cultural Holidays.

Notwithstanding the Collective Agreement between the Parties;

SPL and the Union agree to the following:

Article 12.6 Personal, Religious and Cultural Holidays

With at least four (4) weeks' notice and subject to operational needs, employees are entitled to take up to two (2) days of paid leave. These days are intended to allow employees to observe days in the calendar year that are important to them, personally, religiously, or culturally.

Where operationally necessary, Circulation Associates may be paid out the pro-rated equivalent of these days. In this case, affected employees shall be entitled to take up to two (2) days of unpaid leave in addition to their pro-rated payout.

Every reasonable effort will be made to ensure employees can take these days on their selected dates. If conflict arises in the selection of these dates, the process in Article 11.5 will apply.

This agreement will be implemented concurrently with the signing of the Collective Agreement, undergo annual review, and expire concurrently with the current Collective Agreement which ends December 31, 2027.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any

other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 2 day of <u>lebru</u>	(Cry, 202 <b>5</b> .
For CUPE Local 2669	For Saskatoon Public Library
Hand	Bolucar
40001	Beth Côté, Director, Public Services
Vyhans	Marder.
- 40°	Amanda Kondra, Director, Human
	Resources

## Memorandum of Agreement

### Between

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### And

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as "the Employer")

# Re: Averaging Hours of Work (Flex Time)

Whereas the Employer and the Union recognize that there are some positions where the nature of the work requires flexibility in evening, day, and weekend hours; and

Whereas the Employer and the Union recognize that the Saskatoon Public Library (SPL) is a community organization whose purpose includes providing services to the public that are inspired by and meet the needs of the community; and

Notwithstanding the Collective Agreement between the parties,

The Employer and the Union agree as follows:

- 1. Averaging Hours of Work (Flex Time)
  - a) Flex Time refers to an arrangement where an employee may average their hours worked, at straight time, over a rolling four week period.
  - b) Hours worked in excess of thirty-six and one quarter (36 1/4) hours in a work week and not exceeding forty-three and one half (43 1/2) hours in a work week can be averaged, or 'flexed' within four weeks following the time worked.
  - c) Hours worked in excess of forty-three and one half (43 ½) hours in a work week shall be treated as overtime.
  - d) Hours may be averaged, or 'flexed' when the period of time is a minimum of one (1) hour per occasion to a maximum of four (4) hours per occasion.
  - e) Any employee working under this agreement retains the right to refuse any hours in excess of thirty-six and one quarter (36 %) hours in a work week. An employee may be required to adjust their schedule in order to fulfill duties that fall outside of their regular work hours. As part of this agreement, employees can work with their manager to schedule the 'flex' time that balances the time worked outside of the regular schedule.

Flex Time MOA - Version 08 - February 10, 2022

- f) Hours of work in excess of twenty-nine (29) hours in the week in which a statutory holiday occurs shall apply to flex time arrangements for that week.
- g) Flex time hours shall be taken at a time mutually agreed upon between the manager and the employee, with manager approval.

### 2. Positions Covered by Flex Time

The following full-time positions may opt into this flex time agreement at the request of the employee and with the prior approval of the employee's manager:

- a) Programming Librarians
- b) Programming Associates
- c) Community Librarians
- d) Welcoming Initiatives Librarians
- e) Neighbourhood Librarians
- f) Outreach Workers

Dated this 21 day of February

g) Senior Library Service Associates

Employees currently on a modified work schedule or working less than full hours or duties are not eligible to participate in the flex time agreement. Flex time will not be used for regular and ongoing adjustments to a work schedule. An employee would request a modified work schedule in such cases.

The parties agree that this Memorandum of Agreement shall apply for a minimum of one year. After one year, either one or the other party may provide sixty (60) days' notice of their desire to revisit its terms. This MOA expires upon the signing of the new Collective Agreement.

This agreement is without prejudice and will not be used, produced or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

For CUPE Local 2669

For Saskatoon Public Library

Beth Côté , Acting Director of Libraries and CEO

2025.

xecutive Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

Flex Time MOA - Version 08 - February 10, 2022

### **MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT**

### **Between**

# CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2669 (hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

### And

# SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

**Re: Lieu Days for Full-time Employees** 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to acknowledge that the Union considers the practice of scheduling lieu days for full-time employees in the week prior, the week of, or the week after a Public Holiday falls on a day off better than the Saskatchewan Employment Act requirement that full-time employees are to take the lieu day within the Sunday-Saturday week in which the Public Holiday falls on a day off.

Notwithstanding the Collective Agreement between the Parties;

SPL and the union agree to the following:

That full-time employees whose regular day off falls on a Public Holiday may be scheduled for their lieu day in the Sunday-Saturday week before the week in which the Public Holiday falls, the Sunday-Saturday week in which the Public Holiday falls, or the Sunday-Saturday week after that in which the Public Holiday falls without incurring overtime.

This agreement regarding the Lieu Days for full-time employees will expire upon the signing of the Collective Agreement beginning January 1, 2028.

This agreement is without prejudice or precedence and will not be used, produced, or referred to by either party on behalf of any other employee in any future grievance, arbitration or any other matters undertaken by the parties subsequent to this date, except for the purposes of enforcing this agreement.

Dated this 21 day of February, 2025.

For CUPE Local 2669

For Saskatoon Public Library

President

Beth Côté, Acting Director of Libraries and

CEO

Executive

Amanda Kondra, Director, Human Resources

### **SIGNING PAGE**

All other amendments to the Collective Agreement, unless otherwise stated, will become effective the date of signing the Collective Agreement.

Signed this 21st day of February, 2025.

SASKATOON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD

CUPE LOCAL NO. 2669

Chairperson

Director of Libraries and CEO

**Union Negotiation Member** 

Union Negotiation Member